



Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation  
5th Floor, Hunt Library  
Carnegie Mellon University  
4909 Frew Street  
Pittsburgh, PA 15213-3890  
Telephone: 412-268-2434  
Email: [huntinst@andrew.cmu.edu](mailto:huntinst@andrew.cmu.edu)  
Web site: [www.huntbotanical.org](http://www.huntbotanical.org)

The Hunt Institute is committed to making its collections accessible for research. We are pleased to offer this digitized item.

*Usage guidelines*

We have provided this low-resolution, digitized version for research purposes. To inquire about publishing any images from this item, please contact the Institute.

*About the Institute*

The Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation, a research division of Carnegie Mellon University, specializes in the history of botany and all aspects of plant science and serves the international scientific community through research and documentation. To this end, the Institute acquires and maintains authoritative collections of books, plant images, manuscripts, portraits and data files, and provides publications and other modes of information service. The Institute meets the reference needs of botanists, biologists, historians, conservationists, librarians, bibliographers and the public at large, especially those concerned with any aspect of the North American flora.

Hunt Institute was dedicated in 1961 as the Rachel McMasters Miller Hunt Botanical Library, an international center for bibliographical research and service in the interests of botany and horticulture, as well as a center for the study of all aspects of the history of the plant sciences. By 1971 the Library's activities had so diversified that the name was changed to Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation. Growth in collections and research projects led to the establishment of four programmatic departments: Archives, Art, Bibliography and the Library.

Ho Tzu-ming & Liu Sheng-mun 1980:

*Lomatium* V. N. Ho & S. W. Liou - a revision of *Gentianaceae*. -  
*Act. Phytotax. Sinica* 1 (2) pp. 466-468.

Gentianinae - an exercise in evolutionary classification

by

Fskell Löve and Doris Löve

Department of Environmental, Population and Organismic Biology

University of Colorado, Boulder, Colorado 80302, U. S.A.

Abstract.

This paper constitutes a discussion of the principles of evolutionary classification at the generic level, with emphasis on the significance of basic chromosome numbers as demonstrated within the subtribe Gentianinae of the family Gentianeaceae. It is argued that the natural genus is an important evolutionary cluster of related species formed by evolution through linear-branching from a generic prototype and characterized by a single basic chromosome number and incompatibility towards other such groups. It is also concluded that the primary basic number in this family is  $x = 5$ , with an ascending dysploid and allopolyploid series which transects the collective and heterogeneous genera of previous classifications. The acceptance of more restricted and homogeneous genera for the subtribe Gentianinae is advocated by aid of concrete proposals of names to be applied to the evolutionarily distinct groups. The genera adopted are arranged into three supposedly evolutionary lines with information on their basic chromosome numbers, a proposal supplementary to the well conceived phylogenetic tree for the group recently advocated by Toyokuni. It is observed that since species may have been misplaced in sections and genera of the previous system, a more detailed revision of the correct composition of some of the genera may be needed.

Therefore, only a few nomenclatural transfers and emendations are proposed. The new genus Mehraea is validated to accommodate the very distinct species Mehraea phyllocalyx, formerly Gentiana phyllocalyx of the subsection Phyllocalyx of the section Frigida. Also, the new subgenus Soogentianella is described to enclose the sections Soogentianella (= Antarctophila) and Andicola of the genus Gentianella from austral regions of the world.

In the family Gentianaceae there have been described more than 1200 species which are met with in almost every situation in all parts of the continents from the equinoctial areas of the warm regions to the cold lands of nightless summers. The taxa of the family are as frequent in dry and sandy soils as they are in marshes and cultivated fields, and they occur in forests and grasslands as well as in moors and on the ocean shore, and many species prefer alpine conditions even close to glaciers. Most taxa grow continuously over large or limited areas, but there are species which seem to be congeneric not only on both the large northern continents but even in two widely disjunct regions further south, as, e.g., the genus Microcala Hoffmsg. & Link of the Mediterranean in Europe and the Californian and Peruvian foothills in North and South America. There are even traces of the same species which are known to inhabit both the sides of the Atlantic Ocean in Africa and South America.

Although the diversity of the family has classically been grouped into 70 (Wagenitz 1964) to 80 (Airy Shaw, in Willis 1966) genera, which have been classified into five tribes and five subtribes, more than half of the species have been included in the subtribe Gentianineae and, actually, in the very collective genus Gentiana, which was accepted by Linnaeus (1753) in the same meaning as given to it by Tournefort (1700). He, in turn, had adopted it from Celsus and Scribonius Largus. The family is represented by many genera in the Balkan Peninsula, but it is not certain that the plant so named from the ancient area of Illyria by Scribonius Largus in commemoration of the ancient King Gentius actually was a Gentiana in the sense of Tournefort and later authors. Since Linnaeus, the genus has been repeatedly split into smaller and supposedly more natural units on basis of morphological differences. However, all such attempts were largely ignored by the last

monographer, the Russian botanist Kusnetzov (1895, 1896-1904), who entertained the immense diversity of what he called Gentiana in the two subgenera Gentiana and Gentianella and nineteen sections, to ~~which~~ which Wettstein (1896) soon added the twentieth. This has been accepted ever since, although minor revisions mainly connected with the acceptance of Gentianella as a genus and some reduction in the number of sections have been made, at the initiation of Schustler (1923), by Smith (1936, 1961, 1965, in Hylander 1941, 1945, and in Nilsson 1967a).

Some of the difficulties connected with the classification of the large genus into more natural units seem to be caused by the fact, that most of its showy characteristics are met with in every species, probably as a result of a high degree of homozygotization early in the history of the group, which there is reason to believe was formed early in the evolution of higher plants in southeastern Asia. This was especially pointed out by Gilg (1895), who selected pollen characteristics as the best and main basis for the subdivision of the family into tribes and subtribes. Palynological data have also been found to be of significance at lower taxonomic levels in the family (Nilsson 1964, 1967a,b, 1968, 1970a,b), although only a few have been utilized so far for important conclusions at the generic level. The difficulties in delimiting the genera have, however, not been caused as much by confused characteristics as by confused concepts of how to delimit this level in general, because very few taxonomists seem to have followed the learned advice of De Candolle (1813) on the practical convenience of natural genera.

Our modern ideas of natural classification arise from the work of John Ray in the seventeenth century (1674, 1682). He accepted the older philosophical terms of genus and species and gave them the special meaning

they have for biologists today. Although he had difficulties in defining these concepts exactly, because knowledge of biological phenomena was limited, he showed how genera and species could be adequately described. On his ideas rests the whole of our interpretation of the relationships of living beings.

Linnaeus, who was concerned essentially with identification, based his classification on that of Ray, who was aiming at a natural classification. He emphasized (Linnaeus 1737, 1751) that the most important categories are the genus and the species. The former unites related species, and elsewhere and later he indicated that all the species of a genus might have developed from a generic prototype. It follows that even in times prior to the acceptance of the facts of evolution, leading taxonomists were of the opinion that all species of a genus must be closely related, whereas distinct genera ought to be clearly different from each other.

As biological taxonomy developed during the late eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries, it was perceived that there appeared to be a natural classification of a linear branching character to which successive subordinate divisions could be easily applied (De Candolle 1813). After Darwin (1859) it was realized that a natural classification of this sort must inevitably be expected following the theory of evolution. In fact, the manner of the origin of species by descent from common ancestors imposes not only a branching linear classification of the very kind which is most easily amenable to our linear logical arguments, but it also requires a clustering of species into increasingly larger categories linearly related back in time.

We place living beings in groups when there is a large class of assertions about any of them in such a way that any other object is very likely to possess almost all of them or almost none at all. Plants are likely either to have almost all

the characters we can find in a felwort, or relatively few or none of them. Intermediates in any direction are rare. In this way, felworts and other organisms fall naturally into what we call species. But we also find that in turn certain species can generally be clearly grouped together by the common possession of a collection of characters absent in all other species. For among the exceedingly numerous characters that bind two individuals into a species there is a fairly large number of characters which they share with individuals of certain other species, and these related taxa constitute a unit of a higher order, the genus. A whole set of assertions can be made about all the species comprised in a genus which cannot be made about other species, and so on for higher groups, as tribes, families, orders, and so on. In the natural classification of organisms, these successive classes are arranged in strict subordination, and the whole system branches from a single stem.

A classification convenient and satisfactory to logic requires two basic features. It must be a linear system which can be subjected to logical dichotomies, and the objects to be classified must be capable of precise definition. There is no arbitrary reason why the biological world of which we are aware should <sup>not</sup> condescend to meet these requirements. As a matter of fact, our natural classification of living beings shows linear subordination of the taxa. Also, it clearly allows us to make precise definitions, although groups of non-evolutionary inclined plant taxonomists continue to gainsay this. However, most taxonomists agree that the species and the genus are natural units of distinct and significant reality, and that the main purpose of scientific taxonomy is to define these and other natural categories and not only to invent means to recognize them in nature and the herbarium (cf. Kirpicznikov 1968; Legendre 1972; Löve 1963, 1964).

Though there are undoubtedly some difficult cases where species are hard to distinguish or even seem to grade into each other, in the very great majority they are quite clear, and when one critical biologist speaks to another about species, he is not talking about something that does not exist. Even Ray (1682) defined species by their incompatibility of interbreeding or by their lack of even potential miscibility, as do modern cytogeneticists and evolutionists (cf. Mayr 1942, 1963; Löve & Löve 1942;

Löve 1964; Grant 1963, 1971; Legendre 1972). But subspecies have long been assumed to be potentially capable of interbreeding without reduction in fertility, because they are major geographical races corresponding to those of the human species (Hultén 1968). The differences are inherent in the different evolutionary processes that shape races and species, because the former are produced by gene mutation, probably mainly those creating codominant genes, genetic recombination and natural selection, and genetic recombination requires interfertility. Species, however, are formed by the chromosomal process of rearrangement of large or small segments of the chromosomes, or by polyploidy, both of which prevent or at least counteract fertility that is needed for a proper miscibility which would break down all barriers between such units. Since chromosome number differences are the most obvious indicators of effective reproductive isolation and barriers to miscibility, we regard their discovery as a sufficient warning against including such populations that differ in this respect in the same species.

It is sometimes held that, compared with the species, the genus and higher categories are mere abstractions. But it is significant that even the common man identifies living beings, as belonging to the same genera before experience teaches him to identify species, and Linnaeus himself was originally concerned with self-evident genera or groups of related species.



The Linnaean definition of a genus as a cluster of species that might have developed from the same prototype is not much different from the evolutionary definition that requires that a natural genus includes only species which have evolved from the same original ancestor without dysploid changes in the basic number of chromosomes or genetical changes in the size and morphology of chromosomes. Linnaeus avoided genera that hybridized, and modern taxonomists allow some crossability, not miscibility, between species of a genus, but tolerate no crossability between good genera. From the point of view of evolutionary mechanisms, a genus evolves into few or many species by a differentiation of the chromosomes without changing the basic chromosome number or by various kinds of polyploidy, whereas a new genus is produced by dysploid changes in basic numbers, or by drastic changes in chromosome size and karyotype which create an absolute barrier to crossability with its former relatives and forces it into a new linear evolution of new species by aid of the gradual or abrupt processes mentioned above.

Since the size of a genus is without limits, some genera are restricted to a single species, whereas others may have developed hundreds or thousands of species without forming any crossability barrier that would have forced them into a specific generic evolution. Sometimes taxonomists have found it convenient to subdivide homogeneous genera, or even to split them into smaller morphologically separable genera which lack the biological barrier to crossability. As long as it is understood that this is done for convenience and in the full comprehension of their not being evolutionary distinct, such a procedure should be permitted, because it is not a sin against evolutionary principles to separate for the reason of taxonomical expediency clusters that are otherwise identical. However, it certainly is a violation of the basic principles of evolutionary classification if evolutionary heterogeneity is included in a category, because this is no convenience and will confuse

innocent users who expect species and genera and higher categories to be homogeneous and formed by linear evolutionary processes only.

This carries us back to the family Gentiansaceae and its subdivisions. It is evident from a comparison between the classification of the family into tribes and subtribes by Grisebach (1845), Bentham & Hooker (1876) and Gilg (1895) that the family is homogeneous in characteristics conventionally used for such schemes (Hutchinson 1969) and that it is a distinctly natural unit in itself. The need to emphasize pollen morphology as the most safe basis for its subdivision into higher categories, as done by Gilg (1895), substantiates this fact at the same time as it may seem to overlook the possibility to combine more visible characteristics for the recognition of categories of the distinctness expected of tribes and subtribes. At the generic level, the trouble seems to be more that of a lack of definition than of a lack of recognizable differences, as shown by the fact that the number of generic and sectional groups varies considerably with different authors. Although most taxonomists looking closer at the group during two centuries have realized that the genus Gentiana in the sense of Linnaeus (1753) is much too inclusive and unnatural, plenty of attempts at its regrouping into smaller and more natural units since Adanson (1763) and Gleditsch (1764) have been thoroughly ignored so that even the last review (Smith, in Nilsson 1967a) prefers to accept only twelve genera of the largest subtribe Gentianineae, four of which include from two to nine heterogeneous sections. The improvement of the generic classification of this subtribe has actually been negligible since the revision by Grisebach (1845) and especially from that by Kusnetzov (1895, 1896-1904) until the likewise only morphologically conditioned revision by Smith (in Nilsson 1967a).

With the advent of the methods of cytotaxonomy that require a more biological definition of the generic and species categories, a new approach to the classification of the family into natural genera became available. A few and scattered cytological reports on genera of Gentianaceae had been published before 1949 (cf. Rork 1949), but since then these studies have been intensified and their results have become more exact with the introduction of better techniques. Although most authors have been satisfied to report their results without drawing taxonomical conclusions, D. Löve (1953) argued, on basis of extensive studies of boreal taxa and a review of available information, that especially the genera Gentiana and Gentianella in the sense of Kusnetsov and Smith are clearly too inclusive and very heterogeneous groups characterized by a great variation in basic number and karyotype. She strongly advocated a division of these collective taxa into smaller and more natural genera based on intensified investigations. Later authors have substantiated her conclusion in various ways, and then especially Löve & Löve (1956, 1961a,b, 1972), Gillett (1957, 1963), Fabris (1953, 1958, 1960), Toyokuni (1961, 1963, 1965a,b, 1967, 1968), Iltis (1965), Mason & Iltis (1965), Mayer (1954, 1968, 1969), and Holub (1967, 1968, 1970, 1972). Several of these authors have favored smaller and better defined genera for groups of the inclusive genera of the past, and some have proposed preliminary systems of genera to replace the confused sectional division by the last generation. Palynological investigations, which were found to be most important for the classification of the family and its higher subdivisions by Gilg (1895), have also been revitalized and made new observations available for taxonomical studies also at the lower levels, by Nilsson (1964, 1967a,b, 1968, 1970a,b).

It ought to be emphasized that basic chromosome numbers to be used for evolutionary considerations must be the primary numbers for each particular taxon, irrespective of their origin as dysploid changes of older numbers or as the compound numbers for a secondary polyploid series. Such numbers are not necessarily the lowest haploid numbers so far observed within each group, but rather the hypothetical numbers at the monoploid level for a presumed polyploid series, the diploid and lower polyploid numbers of which may be unknown or even extinct. Frequently, the lowest number known for a genus may be the tetraploid one until suddenly a rare species with the diploid number is found to be extant, as recently observed, e.g., in Gentienella (Mehra & Vasudevan, in Löve 1972). In a genus with no lower number than, for instance,  $2n = 20$ , a fully fertile species found to have  $2n = 30$  must be regarded as being a hexaploid and thus a good indication that the monoploid basic number actually is  $x = 5$  and not  $x = 10$  or  $15$ . Likewise, groups with chromosome numbers which are even multiples of, for instance, 10, ought to be regarded as having the basic number  $x = 5$  if  $2n = 10$  is met with in some closely related genera, because it clearly indicates that the higher numbers are either derived or, more likely, not really the lowest number that is, or at least has been, met with in the group itself. Based on this reasoning, the claim by Löve & Löve (1961b) that the basic number for Gentiana s.str. is  $x = 10$  rather than  $x = 5$ , as claimed by Favarger (1949), must be ignored despite the support given to the former conclusion by Holub, Měsíček & Javůrková (1970), for the simple reason that the lower number is characteristic also of some other genera of the family. It does not affect this argument that the original diploids may have become extinct in the course of evolution because diploids tend to be selected away by the time factor in old groups of plants (Löve & Löve 1971); and in all groups in which only the higher multiples are presently known there is long a possibility that a rare diploid may turn up when more of the generic diversity is sampled.

Since changes in the basic number of chromosomes clearly is an important factor in evolution, many authors have discussed possible causes of such variations. Important studies have been reviewed by Darlington (1965), Stebbins (1950, 1971), Tischler (1951), and, especially, Tischler & Wulff (1953-1963). It is evident from these reviews, that although the lowest basic number of the most primitive angiosperms may have been  $x = 7$ , as maintained by Ehrendorfer, Krendl, Habeler & Sauer (1968), lower and descending numbers could have been produced by aid of unequal translocations, as proposed by Babcock (1947) and strongly advocated by Stebbins (1950, 1971). But it is not excluded that the lowest and primary basic numbers now known have actually always been the lowest ones and that only an ascending series has been produced by aid of centric fragments (Stebbins 1971), or, probably more frequently, by aid of misdivision and duplication of single chromosomes (Lewis & Lewis 1955). It may even seem to be most likely that such an ascending series has been created mainly by a duplication of individual chromosomes to produce a dysploid series  $x = 2, 3, 5, 7$  and that higher numbers have resulted from a simple addition or low polyploidy resulting in the numbers  $x = 4, 6, 8, 9, 11, 13$ , etc. It is possible that in genera of families with apparently high secondary basic numbers as, e.g., the Solanaceae, the numbers are the result of ancient polyploidy accompanied by some other less well understood process, and there is also certainly allopolyploidy originating from very rare crosses between related genera with dysploid basic numbers that must have produced most of the higher basic numbers, especially those of some Brassicaceae (Löve 1961) and the so-called secondary basic number  $x = 17$  characteristic of all Malvaceae (Darlington 1965).

It ought to be mentioned that although we and others, who have studied the classification of Gentianeaceae in the light of its basic numbers, agree that in this family these characteristics are of the greatest importance for the correct delimitation of genera, this does not necessarily mean that this is an universal rule without exception also for other families. We could easily support a claim for the importance of basic numbers in the classification of many other groups, not least in the Pteridophyta, and in the splitting or subdivision of several notoriously too inclusive families and genera from various parts of the system. However, we are also aware of that in some genera an unduly strict adherence to the recommendation of separating groups with several basic numbers may lead to some difficulties that perhaps would counteract the advantages of such an exact evolutionary classification. In such cases it would perhaps be wisest to be content to begin with some doubts, rather than to risk a later retraction of a classification more optimistic than practical.

In the Gentianeaceae no such doubts seem to be valid, since an evolutionary classification supported by basic chromosome numbers is also a practical one. We are aware, however, that more investigations are needed to consolidate the proposals here offered, and to put all the details together in a comprehensive monograph, if it were for nothing else but the fact that species placed even in the same section by previous authors frequently may have to be transferred to various genera. Such a wide reshuffle has, indeed, already been proposed for some species by Smith (1936, 1961, 1965, and in Nilsson 1967a), Toyokuni (1963, 1965a,b, 1967, 1968) and others, and some such changes indicated by the available data will also be mentioned below. We do not feel competent yet to propose such a wholesale series of transfers as will be ultimately needed to completely validate the system to be proposed, but expect that many such adjustments will be made slowly by those concerned

with the limited number of species of selected areas when knowledge in this field increases.

This paper is meant to be only a preliminary attempt to solve an old problem at the generic level, a kind of a summary of our opinions on the evolutionary division of this large subtribe in light of available evidence, in the hope that our ideas and possible misjudgements may induce others to add still more to a sensible solution of this problem of evolutionary classification.

Although no cytological data are yet known from some of the genera of Gentianineae information on the morphology and palynology allow no reason to doubt the correctness of the acceptance of generic status for some of the small genera of the subtribe. This seems to be true for the genus Ixenthus Griseb., represented by a single species in the Canary Islands; Crawfordia Wall., s.str. with around ten species in the Himalayas; Latouches Franch. which is a monotypic genus from eastern China; and Veratrilla Franch. with its two Chinese species.

The monotypic genus Pterygocalyx of Maximovicz (1859), known to occur in the Amur and northern China, was accepted as such by Toyokuni (1963) but regarded as a section of Crawfordia by Gilg (1895). Although cytological information still is lacking for this species, we are inclined to follow Marquand (1931) and Smith (1965), who regarded it as a species of the Crossopetalum section of Gentianella, which we place in the genus Gentianopsis Ma, because of its morphological and palynological (Nilsson 1967a) similarity to other species of this genus. Also, we agree with Smith (1965) in regarding Tripterospermum Blume with its about twenty species in southeastern Asia as a genus in its own right and not as a subgenus only of Crawfordia as maintained by Gilg (1895). The only chromosome number report for this

genus is that by Wada (1966), who reported  $2n = 46$  chromosomes, a number indicating, if exact, the basic number  $x = 23$ . It also ought to be mentioned here that we feel there are sufficiently strong morphological and palynological indications that the section Stenophora of Gentiana would be most adequately accommodated under the genus Tripterosperrum, although cytological evidence is missing.

The genus Megacodon H. Sm. of Smith (1936) includes two Himalayan species the cytology of which remains unknown. Toyokuni (1965a) argued that this taxon would be better placed as a subgenus of Gentiana, close to its typical section. Since palynological evidence (Nilsson 1967a) is clearly in favor of a separate status for these species, they ought to be kept as a distinct genus for a time.

The small genus Jaeschkea Kurt with three species in the Himalayas, of which one species is known to be tetraploid with  $2n = 20$  chromosomes ( $x = 5$ ), is closely related to Gentiana s.str., although clearly distinct from it.

Several reports of the basic number  $x = 11$  from various species of the genus Halenia Borckh., which includes perhaps fifty species of mountains and tundras of Asia and both the Americas, indicate that this is a natural genus, despite various subdivisions proposed by Grisebach (1845), Gilg (1917), and Allen (1933).

The genus Swertia L. traditionally includes more than one hundred species inhabiting alpine regions of Eurasia, North America and Africa. It is a confused group as far as its morphology goes, and Nilsson (1967a) found great heterogeneity in the pollen morphology even within some of the accepted sections. The genus has been divided into ten genera by various taxonomists of the last two centuries (Agathodes D. Don, Anagallidium Griseb., Frasera Walt., Henrices Lem., Monobothrium Hochst., Ophelia D. Don, Rellesta Turcz., Sczukinia Turcz., Stellera Turcz., and Swertia L.) of which the monographer Grisebach (1845) regarded five as acceptable. Most later authors



have ignored this and accepted only the genus Swertia including three sections, as proposed by Gilg (1895), although a more moderate and perhaps sensible solution is that of Grossheim (1952), who accepts Anagallidium Griseb., Ophelia D. Don. and Swertia L. for the taxa met with in the Soviet Union.

From the cytological point of view, Swertia in the wide sense includes various karyotypes and various degrees of polyploidy from the basic chromosome numbers  $x = 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13$ , though some of the numbers seem to be inexact or doubtful. A closer analysis may indicate that Swertia s.str. as restricted, e.g., by Grossheim (1952) circling around the Linnaean taxon S. perennis, has a uniform karyotype and is characterized by the basic number  $x = 7$ . North American species of Swertia s.lat., excluding S. perennis L., however, are characterized by the basic chromosome number  $x = 13$ , and they deviate distinctly in chromosome morphology and in their morphological and palynological characteristics from Swertia s.str. These North American species have been included in the genus Frasera Walt. The cytological and other distinction of Frasera clearly refutes the conclusion by Knoblauch (1894), Gilg (1895) and St. John (1941) who reduced it to synonymy only of Swertia, but supports the opinion by Card (1931), Post (1958) and Gillett (1963), that Frasera is a good natural genus. Morphologically and palynologically certain Asiatic species of the widely conceived Ophelia section of Gilg (1895) are also closely related to Frasera, according to Toyokuni (1965b) and Nilsson (1967a). Since those of these taxa which are safely known cytologically are also characterized by the basic chromosome number  $x = 13$  and a similar karyotype, there seems a good reason to propose their transfer to the genus Frasera although it was originally described to accommodate only American species. It may even be suggested that the S. volkensis group from Africa studied by Hedberg (1957) may ultimately belong as a subgenus or section of Frasera, since its palynology is rather similar, the gross morphology not

much different from that of some of the North American species, the basic chromosome number is the same, and the morphology and size of the chromosomes is similar or identical.

Another group of the collective genus Swertia has the basic chromosome number  $x = 5$  and pollen morphology and gross morphology that indicates a much closer relationship with Lomatogonium A. Br. Indeed, Smith (in Nilsson 1964, 1967a) concluded that this group of Asiatic Swertiae actually belongs to the latter genus and so he transferred a selected number of these species to Lomatogonium. According to Nilsson (1967a), the East African species named as the S. crassiuscula-group by Hedberg (1957) are more or less identical in their pollen morphology to certain species of Lomatogonium; since they are also characterized by the same basic chromosome number,  $x = 5$ , and a similar chromosome morphology, in addition to several gross morphological traits, a transfer of this group to Lomatogonium seems to be well conceived.

As far as cytological information goes, the group accepted as the genus Ophelia D. Don in a restricted sense by Grossheim (1952) is characterized by the basic number  $x = 6$ , although only tetraploid species have been studied so far. It seems to be wise to retain this group as a distinct genus and to transfer only its section Dimaculatæ to Frasera rather than the entire genus as proposed by Toyokuni (1965a), since this would secure homogeneity of both genera. The monotypic Siberian genus Anagallidium Griseb., which was retained by Grossheim (1952), is cytologically and palynologically unknown, so its systematic position remains insecure.

These alterations would reduce Swertia s.str. to a genus of perhaps less than fifty species of alpine situations from East Africa and Central Europe through southern and eastern Asia to western North America. The genus Frasera would include more than thirty species distributed from East Africa and South Asia to eastern North America. The genus Ophelia includes about twenty species of Asiatic mountains, and one Central Asiatic species belongs to Anagallidium.

The distinction of the genus Lomatogonium A. Br. (cf. Fernald 1919) has never been questioned, although there have been some discussions in recent decades as to its delimitation (Smith 1926, 1936, and in Nilsson 1967a; Löve & Löve 1956, 1961a; Toyokuni 1961, 1962; and others). In its present circumscription it includes some fifty species which occur in alpine areas of East Africa, parts of Eurasia, and North America, from the subtropical mountains to the arctic zone. It is among the most primitive genera of the family, characterized by the basic chromosome number  $x = 5$  and including species known to have from the diploid to the octoploid number. Lomatogonium may include the most primitive representatives of the Gentianaceae and stand close to the hypothetical genus Progentiana with its assumed double corolla and double stamens and reticulate pollen grains. The genus seems to be most closely related to the genus Comastoma, but it is also kindred to Gentiana s.str. and then especially to its section or subgenus Coilantha.

This carries us to the genus Gentiana in the sense of Kusnetzov (1895, 1896-1904), or perhaps rather to the genera Gentiana and Gentianella in the sense of Smith (in Nilsson 1967a). Both these genera are divided into several sections by Smith and other authors, and both are heterogeneous assemblages of taxa of various relationships if looked at from morphological, palynological (Nilsson 1967a, 1970b), or cytological (D. Löve 1953) points of view, though the latter group is less so than the former. The most primitive species of Gentianella s.lat. are met with in the section Comastoma Wettst., which is morphologically related to Lomatogonium with which it also shares the basic chromosome number  $x = 5$  and somewhat similar pollen grains which resemble also those of Halenia, although in that latter characteristics they are not identical (Nilsson 1967a). Löve & Löve (1956) concluded from this resemblance observed already by Wettstein (1896) that Comastoma ought to be transferred to Lomatogonium, whereas Toyokuni (1961, 1962) demonstrated that Comastoma

is actually more correctly placed as a genus separate from other Gentianae though it is related to Lomatogonium and shares with it the status as one of the most primitive groups in the complex. Comastoma as a genus includes less than twenty species, which are known to occur mainly in the eastern Asiatic mountains, although the genus is also represented in European and North American alpine regions and even in the arctic zone.

Although we accept here the genus Comastoma as distinct from Lomatogonium, we are aware of the fact that the arguments for its separation may not be valid. The morphological and cytological similarities used by Löve & Löve (1956) as a basis for uniting both groups as sections of a single genus Lomatogonium are perhaps as inconclusive as are the opposite arguments based on the same observations, for the simple reason that similarities tell less in logic than do dissimilarities, although the differences between these groups remain no greater than between two species of Lomatogonium.

Nilsson (1967a) studying the palynology of the family, claims, on his p. 88, that "pollen morphology does not support Löve & Löve's combination", whereas on the very next page he reports on a plant, tentatively named as the genus and species Phyllostoma concinna by Smith, that "shows similarities both with Gentianella sect. Comastoma and Lomatogonium", in morphology as well as in pollen morphology. The occurrence of such an intermediate group strongly supports the logical conclusion that these taxa actually belong to a single natural genus, with two or three subgenera or sections, rather than to two or three separate genera. Experiments on the crossability of these taxa are needed for a final solution of the question of their status. However, we prefer to accept them as distinct genera for the time being, following the rule that it is wiser and evolutionarily more correct to separate taxa that may be similar than to unite those which are possibly distinct.

Another of the sections of Gentianella of Smith (in Nilsson 1967a), section Crossopetalum Froell, also deviates considerably from the other groups in general and floral morphology (Lindsay 1940), in pollen morphology and in cytological characteristics, as pointed out by D. Löve (1953) and Nilsson (1967a). Although it had been recognized and named as a genus by previous authors, as Anthopogon by Necker (1790) which is an invalid name according to the present Code (Stafleu & alii 1972), and Crossopetalum by Roth (1827), which has an earlier homonym in the Celastraceae, its valid name is Gentianopsis, as described by Ma (1951). Its basic chromosome number is  $x = 11$  as pointed out by D. Löve (1953) and Löve & Löve (1961a,b), who also mentioned the need to verify the basic number  $x = 13$  which had been reported from two North American species which otherwise do not deviate much from other species of the genus. Later studies have confirmed these doubts (Löve & Löve, unpubl.) since the species in question were found to have  $2n = 88$  rather than 78 chromosomes as previously reported. The genus includes about 70 species of mainly Asiatic and North American distribution and <sup>is</sup> represented by a few species also in alpine and subarctic Europe. (Iltis 1965; Mason & Iltis 1965).

Other sections of Gentianella of Smith (in Nilsson 1967a), i.e., Gentianella (= Amarella Griseb.), Arctophila Griseb., Antarctophila Griseb., are cytologically ( $x = 9$ ,  $2n = 18, 36, 54$ ) and palynologically uniform and so ought to be kept in the genus Gentianella Moench, s.str. The genus so circumscribed includes about 200 species, the majority of which belong to the subgenus Gentianella with its boreal to arctic circumpolar section Gentianella typified by G. amarella (L.) Börner and including about eighty Eurasiat<sup>ca</sup>-North American species, and the smaller arctic-alpine and temperate-boreal-subarctic section Arctophila Griseb. typified by G. aurea (L.) H.Sm which includes somewhat more than twenty species. The two other sections

from austral mountains are apparently closely related (Nilsson 1967a) though doubtlessly representatives of the genus Gentianella according to their morphology and palynology and also by virtue of their chromosome numbers despite of that the cytological reports are scanty. Therefore, the doubts expressed by Allan (1961) as to the belonging of the New Zealand species to this genus were clearly unfounded. These groups seem to be correctly retained as different sections at the same time as they need to be united in the subgenus Soogentianella Löve & Löve described below. That new subgenus is named in honor of Professor Rezső Soó of Budapest, one of the foremost plant systematists of his generation and an author of countless contributions to the study of the evolution, sociology and taxonomy of the Central European flora. The subgenus is typified by the species G. montana (Forst.f.) Löve & Löve, making it necessary to sink the sectional name Antarctophile into the synonymy of the section Soogentianella. That section is a group of perhaps more than fifty species of Australis, New Zealand and southernmost South America. The other section, Andicola, includes close to one hundred species of the mountains of South America from Colombia to Tierra del Fuego and the Falkland Islands.

In connection with a preliminary classification of the genus Gentiana as restricted by Schustler (1923) and Smith (1936) into more exactly defined genera, Löve & Löve (1961a,b) proposed the resuscitation of the genera Ericoila Ren. (more correct Ericala Ren.; S.F.Gray, cf. Burt 1966) to accommodate the species of the sections Chondrophylla Bge. and Thylacites Ren., and Hippion F.W.Schmidt for the section Cyclostigma Griseb., leaving the sections Gentiana (=Coelanthé), Pneumonanthé, Otophora, Stenogyne, Frigida, and Aptere in the restricted but still clearly heterogeneous genus Gentiana. More recent cytological and palynological data added to the older morphological observations now make possible an additional revision which at least seems to leave most of these taxa in a state of greater homogeneity (Holub 1972).

The genus Gentiana L. s.str. is based on G. lutea L. (cf. Hitchcock & Green, in Briquet 1935). The genus is a small but rather uniform group of five species of widely separated alpine regions in Eurasia. They are all tetraploid and characterized by the basic number  $x = 5$  and a similar pollen morphology, although the species G. lutea L. differs sufficiently in flower morphology and pollen type from the other four species to form a subgenus of its own, subg. Gentiana whereas the other species have been distinguished as the subgenus Coilantha (Borckh.) Holub, by Holub (1970).

Another taxon, which is well-defined morphologically, cytologically and palynologically, is composed of the united sections Aptera Kusn. and Pneumonanthe Link, provided that the species G. asclepiades L. and its relatives are eliminated from the group. (D. Löve 1953; Nilsson 1967a). The pollen morphology of these taxa is similar, and they are characterized by the basic chromosome number  $x = 13$  and a homogeneous karyotype. As a genus this group must be named Tretorhiza Adans. (cf. Dandy 1967). Although there can be no doubt that these two former sections of Gentiana must remain congeneric under this name, we believe that they are more distinct than the sectional category implies, morphologically and biologically. Therefore, we propose a subgeneric status for Pneumonanthe when transferred to the new group, as validated below. It follows, that the section Aptera Kusn. automatically becomes the subg. Tretorhiza, since the type species of the genus <sup>is</sup> G. cruciata L. which becomes T. cruciata (L.) Löve & Löve as validated below. The subgenus Tretorhiza seems to include some thirty species mainly from central and eastern Asia but also from Siberia and Europe, whereas the subgenus Pneumonanthe is represented by about fifteen species in Eurasia and about twenty species in North America.

The species G. asclepiadea L. of western Asiatic and central and south European mountains was included in the section Pneumonanthe by Kusnetzov (1895, 1896-1904) and Smith (in Nilsson 1967a). It stands, however, apart from all the other species of this group not only morphologically but also palynologically and cytologically, with its basic chromosome number  $x = 11$ . Grossheim (1952) placed it in a distinct series Asclepiadeae of the section Pneumonanthe together with the west Asiatic G. schistocalyx C. Koch and the east Asiatic G. scabra Bge. He distinguished this group from other taxa of his section Pneumonanthe <sup>with</sup> with winged seeds by aid of the corolla plaits being short and either entire or toothed, the leaves elongate-acuminate, and the flowers large, blue, and 5-merous. Although G. scabra is similar to the other two species in these characters, it can be distinguished without difficulty by its terminal cluster of bracteolate flowers with well developed plaits, as contrasted to the flowers of the other species which are in the leaf axils, always without bracteoles and with short plaits. G. scabra also differs in its pollen morphology, and since it is known to have  $2n = 26$  chromosomes, it seems most reasonable to retain it in the restricted section Pneumonanthe of the genus Tretorhiza, as T. scabra (Bge.) Löve & Löve which is validated below. The other species of Grossheim's series Asclepiadeae are characterized by the basic chromosome number  $x = 11$  and distinctly smaller chromosomes, in addition to morphological and palynological differences that set them apart as a genus in its own right. The valid name available for this group is Dasystephane Adans. (Dandy 1967) in its original and restricted sense when species other than D. asclepiadea (L.) Borckh. included in it by Borckhausen (1796) are excluded. As far as we are aware, the only other species to be included in the genus Dasystephane is the western Asiatic D. schistocalyx (C. Koch) Löve & Löve, as transferred below.



The two small Chinese sections Otophora Kusn. (five species) and Stenogyne French. (ten species) of the genus Gentiana of both Kusnetzov (l.c.) and Smith (l.c.) are cytologically unknown. It is, however, evident from morphological and palynological observations that they belong to widely separate evolutionary lines. Although later cytological studies may prove this wrong, we are of the opinion that their characteristics strongly indicate that the species of Stenogyne would fit well as a subgenus of Tripterospermum Blume, as argued above, whereas the species of Otophora seem to be more correctly placed as a subgenus of the genus Gentianodes Löve & Löve. These transfers and changes in status are validated below.

The section Frigida Kusn. was divided into the subsections Typicae, with most of the species, and Phyllocalyx and Froelichii with one species each, by Kusnetzov (1895, 1896-1904), whereas Smith (in Nilsson 1967a) divided it into the subsections Monopodiace and Sympodiace, without descriptions.

Since the latter seem to be rather unnatural groups of heterogeneous taxa, they are ignored here, but the section Typicae was shown, in a recent paper by Löve & Löve (1972), to be best classified as a distinct genus, Gentianodes Löve & Löve, characterized among others by the basic chromosome number  $x = 6$  and including about forty species. These taxa have mainly an eastern Asiatic distribution, although a few reach westward to the mountains of Central Europe and eastward to the Rocky Mountains of North America. In addition to its typical subgenus Gentianodes, the section Otophora Kusn. forms another subgenus of this group, as mentioned above. The subsection Froelichii Kusn., or subsection Froelichiella, a superfluous name recently proposed by Pawlowski (1970) who was apparently unaware of the explanation on p. 258 of Kusnetzov (1896-1904), is regarded as a separate genus, Favargera Löve & Löve, the single species of which, F. froelichii Löve & Löve, is endemic in the eastern Alps of Europe. It has the hexaploid chromosome number  $2n = 42$

of the basic number  $x = 7$ . In addition to morphological differences, these genera also differ slightly in pollen morphology.

The monotypic subsection Phyllocalyx of the section Frigida has pollen reminding of that of Crawfordia (Nilsson 1967a), in addition to several morphological differences that seem to set it between Favargera and Tretorhiza, rather than between the former genus and Gentianodes. Löve & Löve (1972) therefore hesitated to select a place for the unique eastern or southern Asiatic species G. phyllocalyx C. B. Clarke among the other species of the former section Frigida, especially because its chromosome number was unknown. We have now studied more herbarium material of this plant, and by aid of seeds from India: Sikkim, Gangtok-Pakyong, B. Carrick, s.n., it has also been possible to count the number  $2n = 26$  for the species. Although the number had to be determined in a single cell only, we regard it as safe to conclude that the basic number of G. phyllocalyx is  $x = 13$ , as contrasted to  $x = 6$  for Gentianodes and  $x = 7$  for Favargera. Added to the morphological and palynological distinctions, it seems, therefore, logical to conclude that also this subsection of Kusnetzov's section Frigida would be correctly regarded as a genus of its own, for which we propose the name Mehraea Löve & Löve, as validated below. This new genus is named in honor of Professor P. N. Mehra of Chandigarh, an ardent student of the cytology of Himalayan higher and lower plants. The sole species of the genus is Mehraea phyllocalyx (C.B. Clarke) Löve & Löve, as also validated below. Although it has the same basic number as does Tretorhiza, with which it also shares some few characteristics, we believe this is only incidental and not caused by evolutionary relationship. It may, however, seem feasible to suggest that the new genus may have been formed as an allopolyploid derivative of a hybrid between a diploid or tetraploid species of Gentianodes and an extinct diploid or tetraploid of Favargera, although no such species is known of the latter group and both genera presently grow as far

apart as the Himalayas and the Alps except for a single species of Gentianodes that also reaches the Alps. However, other less farfetched explanations are possible and perhaps more likely, since the new genus may have been badly misplaced with the section Frigida to which it could be completely unrelated.

The section Chondrophylla Bge. was tentatively united with the section Thylacites Ren. in the genus Ericoila Ren. (correct Ericala Ren.; S.F.Gray, cf. Burt 1966), by Löve & Löve (1961a,b). The former section includes a small group of perennial species represented by G. pyrenaica L. and G. grandiflora Laxm., and a large group of annual species of which G. prostrata Haenke is typical. Recent cytological studies have revealed that this distinction is accompanied by a profound difference in chromosome morphology and basic number, so that while the annual group has  $x = 9$  ( $2n = 18, 36$ ), as does also Thylacites, the perennial taxa have  $x = 13$ . The about sixty boreal and South American species of the annual Chondrophylla and Thylacites combined belong together in the genus Cimnialis Adens. (cf. Holub 1972), whereas the about ten Eurasiatic, North and South American perennial Chondrophylla can at least preliminarily be accommodated in the genus Ericala Ren.; S. F. Gray when restricted by typification with E. pyrenaica (L.) G. Don.

The last group of Gentiana in the sense of earlier authors belongs to the section Cyclostigma Griseb., preliminarily identified with the genus Hippion F. W. Schmidt by Löve & Löve (1961a,b). It includes about ten species of high-alpine and arctic regions in the boreal zone. Recent studies have revealed that the oldest correct name available for this taxon at the generic level is Calathiana Delarbre (Holub 1972), with the type species C. nivalis (L.) Delarbre. The basic chromosome number of this genus is  $x = 7$ , of which diploid, tetraploid and hexaploid multiples are known. There seems to be no palynological indication of heterogeneity within this taxon, so some deviating chromosome numbers reported for some taxa need verification.

The proposals above are self-explanatory and so need no further discussion. Or perhaps it would be more appropriate to say that they are based on an approach so fundamentally different from what has been previously done for this family and other such groups, that the discussion we could possibly make would require such an amount of evaluations that it would fill a book. Therefore, we prefer to leave it to the imagination of the initiated reader and trust that his judgement will be consistent with the facts presented, although we do not expect him to agree with all the conclusions we have drawn.

It would also have been desirable to include here a complete list of new combinations required at the species and lower levels in order to demonstrate the complete effect of the proposal on the entire group involved. A few new combinations are proposed at the end of the paper, although we realize their limitation. It would not be too difficult to transfer directly every one of the species previously listed under sectional and other headings by other authors. However, we think we have a reason to doubt that all such listings have been entirely correct, and so we refrain from such a wholesale transfer mainly because we want to avoid repeating mistakes that may look detrimental to the system, because time is insufficient to perform all the detailed studies needed to secure the correct placing of every taxon. And we trust that others will continue where we concluded.

Although we are aware of the preliminary nature of our proposals, which perhaps are only a small improvement from those of past generations, it is to the benefit of both the producers and consumers to get some comparative review of the old systems and of the alterations which the new system requires. Therefore, we list, in Table I, the groupings and their arrangement as made by Grisebach (1845), Kusnetzov (1895, 1896-1904), and Smith (in Nilsson 1967a), and make a linear arrangement of our own proposals. It should be emphasized,

however, that the arrangement ought to be linear-branching, because all evolution has been in that way, and a drawing of a phylogenetic tree would have been more appropriate. Such a drawing based on fewer genera has recently been furnished by Toyokuni (1965a). There is no doubt that the available data need to be much extended, especially with information on chemical compounds which seem to be more appropriate as an indication of an evolutionary course than are any other biological data, because such compounds seem to evolve irreversibly in a single direction. However, we believe that the cytological and palynological observations made strongly indicate that the phylogenetic tree presented by Toyokuni (1965a) is correct in its general outlines, and that improvements will add details rather than fundamental changes. As to the additions that we expect, these are likely to emphasize that the phylogeny of the family in general and of the subtribe Gentianinae in particular must be considered on basis of more morphological and cytogenetical studies that emphasize combinations of supposedly primitive characters as contrasted to those we believe are advanced. All such studies must, however, be consistent with the basic chromosome numbers because the chromosomes certainly are evolutionarily more important than any morphological or chemical character, for the simple reason that they determine the characters, not the other way around. Changes in the chromosomes determine the evolutionary processes at all levels and they also determine the future expectations of living beings at any taxonomical level.

It is our impression that the basic number in the subtribe Gentianinae, and also in the family Gentianaceae as a whole, must originally have been  $x = 5$ , and that other numbers have been derived from this by simple dysploid chromosome additions and later allopolyploidy. This was originally proposed by D. Löve (1953) and later accepted by Khoshoo & Tandon (1963) in connection with studies on Swertia, and is apparently also favored by Perry (1971) who

studied the genus Sabstia that belongs to another tribe of Gentianaceae. None of these authors seem to favor the proposal by Favarger (1949) who assumed that fusion of chromosomes had played a strong role in the creation of the variable basic numbers of the family. Therefore, the descending series of basic numbers characterizing the genera of Gentianinae may be regarded as a safe indicator of an evolutionary progression, from lower basic numbers to higher ones. In our sentiment this sequence has been in at least three and perhaps more directions, forming evolutionary branches that all begin with Progentiana, or even Lomatogonium, with their  $x = 5$  basic chromosome number. Since neither we nor anybody else can pretend to adequate knowledge over more than parts of such a subject as is basic for such speculations, it requires apology to deal with such a proposal. But that is no reason to leave it undiscussed, and even the fact that genera with other basic numbers important as steps to towards the present state may have become extinct, is not an excuse for avoiding such a conclusion. Therefore, we would like to propose, as an addition to the good phylogenetic tree drawn by Toyokuni (1965a), that                      in the Gentianinae the following three branches give a vague indication as to the possible direction of the evolutionary processes that have shaped the complex:

(A), the Gentiana line: Gentiana ( $x = 5$ ), Gentianodes ( $x = 6$ ), Favargera ( $x = 7$ ), Calathiana ( $x = 7$ ), Cimnialis ( $x = 9$ ), Dasystephana ( $x = 11$ ), Ericala ( $x = 13$ ), Mehraea ( $x = 13$ ), Tretorhiza ( $x = 13$ ), Ixanthus ( $x = ?$ ), Tripterospermum ( $x = 23?$ ).

(B), the Gentianella line: Lomatogonium ( $x = 5$ ), Comastoma ( $x = 5$ ), Jaeschkea ( $x = 5$ ), Megacodon ( $x = ?$ ), Gentianella ( $x = 9$ ), Gentianopsis ( $x = 11$ ), Crawfurdia ( $x = ?$ ).

(C), the Swertia line: Anagallidium ( $x = ?$ ), Ophelia ( $x = 6$ ), Swertia ( $x = 7$ ), Halenia ( $x = 11$ ), Frasera ( $x = 13$ ), Veratrilla ( $x = ?$ ), Latouchea ( $x = ?$ ).

We present this new system of the subtribe Gentianeae as an humble exercise in evolutionary plant taxonomy, a kind of a guideline that we hope is likely to lead to a more fertile solution of problems concerning the monographers of critical families. It seems to us that the utilization of this and other kinds of data related to the chromosomes would in most cases improve the classification arrived at and secure that it rests not on fallacious assumptions about the relative age of morphological characters but on characteristics of an undoubtedly most important evolutionary significance. To ignore the chromosomes in the classification of categories at any level and in the construction of more or less hypothetical phylogenetic trees certainly would be not a slight but a fatal misunderstanding of the basic principles of evolutionary biology.

Nomenclatural changes.

Dasystephana Adans., to be restricted by the selection of the type species

D. asclepiades (L.) Borckh.

Dasystephana schistocalyx (C. Koch) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana schistocalyx C. Koch, in *Linnaea* 17 (1943) 282.

Ericala Ren.; S.F. Gray, to be restricted by the selection of the type species

E. pyrenaica (L.) Borckh.

Gentianella Moench

subgenus Soogentianella Löve & Löve, subg. nov.

Calyx integer, in tubum connexus. Corolla rotata, plieis glandulisque destituta. Antherae versatiles, liberae. Stylus nullus vel subnullus, stigmatibus duabus distinctis. Capsula sessilis. Testa exalata.

Radix annua vel perennis. Species in plagis temperatis hemisphaerii australis.

Typus subgeneris: Gentianella montana (Forst. f.) Löve & Löve.

Gentianella montana (Forst. f.) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana montana Forst. f., *Flor. Ins. Austr. Prodr.* (1786) 21.

47111 Gentianodes Löve & Löve

subgenus Otophora (Kusn.) Löve & Löve, stat. & comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana sect. Otophora Kusnetzov, in Engler & Prantl,

*Pflanzenfam.* IV, 2 (1895) 82; cf. also *Acta Horti Petrop.* 15 (1896-1904).

Gentianodes otophora (Franch.) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana otophora Franchet, ex Hemsley in *Journ. Linn.*

*Soc. London* 26 (1890) 130.



Gentianopsis Ma

subgenus Pterygocalyx (Maxim.) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Pterygocalyx Maximovicz, in Prim.Fl.Amurensis (1858) 198 & t. 9.

Gentianopsis volubilis (Maxim.) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Pterygocalyx volubilis Maximovicz, in Prim. Fl.

Amurensis (1858) 198 & t. 9.

Mehraea Löve & Löve, gen. nov.,

based on Gentiana sect. Frigida subsect. Phyllocalyx Kusnetzov, in

Acta Horti Petrop. 15 (1898) 287 - 289.

Mehraea phyllocalyx (C.B.Clarke) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana phyllocalyx C.B. Clarke, in Hooker, Fl. Brit.

India IV (1883) 116.

Tretorhiza Adans.

subgenus Tretorhiza

Tretorhiza cruciata (L.) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana cruciata L., Sp. pl. (1753) 231.

subgenus Pneumonanthe (Link) Löve & Löve, stat. & comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana sect. Pneumonanthe Link, Enum. I (1821) 258.

Tretorhiza pneumonanthe (L.) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana pneumonanthe L., Sp. pl. (1753) 228.

Tretorhiza scabra (Bge.) Löve & Löve, comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana scabra Bunge, Verz. Alt. (1836) 21.

Tripterospermum Blume

subgenus Stenogyne (Franch.) Löve & Löve, stat. & comb. nov.,

based on Gentiana sect. Stenogyne Franchet, in Bull. Soc. Bot.

France 31 (1884) 375.

Bibliography.

- ADANSON, M. (1763): Familles des plantes. - Paris.
- ALLAN, H. H. (1961): Flora of New Zealand. Volume I. - Wellington.
- ALLEN, C. K. (1933): A monograph of the American species of the genus Halenia. - Ann. Missouri Bot. Garden 20, 119 - 222.
- BABCOCK, E. B. (1947): The genus Crepis. - Univ. Calif. Publ. Bot. 21-22, 1-1030.
- BENTHAM, G. & HOOKER, J. D. (1876): Genera plantarum. Volume 2. - London.
- BORCKHAUSEN, D. M. E. (1796): Ueber Linnés Gattung Gentiana. - Römer: Archiv f.d. Bot. 1, 23 - 30.
- BRIQUET, J. (1935): International rules of botanical nomenclature. - Jena.
- BURTT, B. L. (1966): Notes, chiefly nomenclatural, on Gentianaceae of Pakistan and India. - Notes Roy. Bot. Gard. Edinb. 26, 269 - 278.
- CARDY, H. H. (1931): A revision of the genus Frasera. - Ann. Missouri Bot. Garden 18, 245 - 282.
- DANDY, J. E. (1967): Index of generic names of vascular plants 1753 - 1774. - Regnum Vegetabile 51, 1 - 130.
- DARLINGTON, C. D. (1965): Cytology. - London.
- DARWIN, C. (1859): On the origin of species by means of natural selection. - London.
- DE CANDOLLE, A. P. (1813): Théorie élémentaire de la botanique. - Paris.
- EHRENDORFER, F., KRENDL, F., HABELER, E. & SAUER, W. (1968): Chromosome numbers and evolution in primitive angiosperms. - Taxon 17, 337 - 353.
- FABRIS, H. A. (1953): Sinopsis preliminar de las Gencianaceas Argentinas. - Bol. Soc. Argent. Bot. 4, 233 - 259.
- FABRIS, H. A. (1958): Notas sobre Gentianella del Peru. - Bol. Soc. Argent. Bot. 7, 68 - 93.
- FABRIS, H. A. (1960): El género Gentianella en Ecuador. - Bol. Soc. Argent. Bot. 8, 160 - 192.
- FAVARGER, C. (1949): Contribution à l'étude caryologique et biologique des Gentianacées. - Ber. Schweiz. Bot. Ges. 59, 62 - 86.

- FERNALD, M. L. (1919): Lomatogonium the correct name for Pleurogyne. - Rhodora 21, 193 - 198.
- GILG, E. (1895): Gentianaceae. - Natürl. Pflanzenfam. 4(2), 50 - 108.
- GILG, E. (1917): Die südamerikanischen Arten der Gattung Halenia. - Beibl. Bot. Jahrb. 118, Vol. 54, 93 - 122.
- GILLETT, J. M. (1957): A revision of the North American species of Gentianella Moench. - Ann. Missouri Bot. Garden 44, 195 - 269.
- GILLETT, J. M. (1963): The gentians of Canada, Alaska and Greenland. - Res. Branch, Canada Dept. of Agric., Publ. 1180, 1 - 99.
- GLEDTTSCH, J. G. (1764): Systema plantarum e staminum situ. - Berlin.
- GRANT, V. (1963): The origin of adaptations. - New York.
- GRANT, V. (1971): Plant speciation. - New York and London.
- GRISEBACH, A. H. R. (1845): Gentianaceae. - De Candolle: Prodrömus 9, 38 - 141.
- GROSSEHEIM, A. A. (1952): Gentianaceae Dumort. - Flora SSSR 18, 525 - 640.
- HEDBERG, O. (1957): Afroalpine vascular plants: A taxonomic revision. - Symb. Bot. Upsal. 15(1), 1 - 411.
- HEGNAUER, R. (1966): Chemotaxonomie der Pflanzen. Bd. 4. - Basel.
- HOLUB, J. (1967): Neue Namen innerhalb der Gattungen Gentianella Moench, Gentianopsis Ma und Comastoma (Wettst.) Toyokuni. - Folia Geobot. et Phytotaxon. 1, 115 - 120.
- HOLUB, J. (1968): Einige neue nomenklatorische Kombinationen innerhalb der Gentianaceae. - Folia Geobot. et Phytotaxon. 3, 217 - 218.
- HOLUB, J. (1970): New names in Phanerogamae. I. - Folia Geobot. et Phytotaxon. 5, 435 - 441.
- HOLUB, J. (1972): New names in Phanerogamae. II. - Folia Geobot. et Phytotaxon. 7, .....
- HOLUB, J., MĚSTĚK, J. & JAVŮRKOVÁ, V. (1970): Annotated chromosome counts of Czechoslovak plants (1 - 15). (Materials for a Flora ČSSR - 1). - Folia Geobot. et Phytotaxon. 5, 339 - 368.
- HULTĚN, E. (1968): Flora of Alaska and neighboring territories. - Stanford.
- HUTCHINSON, J. (1969): Evolution and phylogeny of flowering plants. Dicotyledons: Facts and theory. - London and New York.

- HYLANDER, N. (1941): Förteckning över Skandinavians växter. 1. Kärlväxter. - Lund.
- HYLANDER, N. (1945): Nomenkulatorische und systematische Studien über nordische Gefässpflanzen. - Uppsala Univ. Årsskr. 1945, 7, 1 - 337.
- ILTIS, H. H. (1965): The genus Gentianopsis (Gentianaceae): transfers and phytogeographic comments. - Side 2, 129 - 154.
- KHOSHOO, T. N. & TANDON, S. R. (1963): Cytological, morphological and pollination studies on some Himalayan species of Swertia. - Caryologia 16, 445 - 477.
- KIRPICZNIKOV, M. E. (1968): K kontseptsii roda u tsvetkovykh rasteniy. - Bot. Zhurn. 53, 190 - 202.
- KNOBLAUCH, E. (1894): Beiträge zur Kenntnis der Gentianaceae. - Bot. Centralbl. 60, 385 - 401.
- KUSNETZOV, N. (1895): Gentiana Tournef. - Natürl. Pflanzenfam. 4(2, 80 - 86.
- KUSNETZOV, N. J. (1896-1904): Subgenus Eugentiana Kusnez. generis Gentiana Tournef. - Acta Horti Petrop. 15, 1 - 507.
- LEGENDRE, P. (1972): The definition of systematic categories in biology. - Taxon 21, 381 - 406.
- LEWIS, H. & LEWIS, M. (1955): The genus Clarkia. - Univ. Calif. Publ. Bot. 20: 241 - 392.
- LINDSAY, A. A. (1940): Floral anatomy in the Gentianaceae. - Amer. Journ. Bot. 27, 640 - 652.
- LINNAEUS, C. (1737): Critica botanica. - Leyden.
- LINNAEUS, C. (1751): Philosophia botanica. - Stockholmiae.
- LINNAEUS, C. (1753): Species plantarum. - Holmiae.
- LÖVE, Å. (1961): Hylandra - a new genus of Cruciferae. - Svensk Bot. Tidskr. 55, 211 - 217.
- LÖVE, Å. (1963): Cytotaxonomy and generic delimitation. - Regnum Vegetabile 27, 45 - 51.
- LÖVE, Å. (1964): The biological species concept and its evolutionary structure. - Taxon 13, 33 - 45.
- LÖVE, Å. (1972): IOPB chromosome number reports. XXXVI. - Taxon 21, 333 - 346.
54. LÖVE, Å. & LÖVE, D. (1942): Chromosome numbers of Scandinavian plant species. - Bot. Notiser 1942, 19 - 59.

- LÖVE, A. & LÖVE, D. (1956): Cytotaxonomical conspectus of the Icelandic flora. - Acta Horti Gotob. 20, 65 - 291.
- LÖVE, A. & LÖVE, D. (1961a): Some nomenclatural changes in the European flora. I. Species and supraspecific categories. - Bot. Notiser 114, 33 - 47.
- LÖVE, A. & LÖVE, D. (1961b): Chromosome numbers of Central and Northwest European plant species. - Opera Botanica 5, 1 - 581.
- LÖVE, A. & LÖVE, D. (1971): Polyploidie et géobotanique. - Natural. Canad. 98, 464 - 494.
- LÖVE, A. & LÖVE, D. (1972): Favargera and Gentienodes, two new genera of alpine Gentianaceae. - Bot. Notiser 125, .....
- LÖVE, D. (1953): Cytotaxonomical remarks on the Gentianaceae. - Hereditas 39, 225 - 235.
- MA, Y.-C. (1951): Gentienopsis: a new genus of Chinese Gentianaceae. - Acta Phytotaxon. Sinica 1, 5 - 19.
- MARQUAND, C. V. B. (1931): New Asiatic gentians: II. - Kew Bull. Misc. Inf. 2, 68 - 88.
- MASON, C. T. & ILLIS, H. H. (1965): Preliminary report of the flora of Wisconsin No. 53. Gentianaceae and Menyanthaceae. Trans. Wisc. Acad. Sci., Arts and Lett. 54, 295 - 329.
- MAXIMOVICZ, C. J. (1859): Primitiae florae amurensis. Versuch einer Flora des Amur-Landes. - St. Petersburg.
- MAYER, E. (1954): Pripravljalna dela za floro Slovenije. I. Gentiana L. sect. Endotricha Froel. - Slov. Akad. Znanosti in Umetnosti, Cl. IV, Razprava 92, 47 - 74.
- MAYER, E. (1968): Zur Kenntnis der Gattung Gentianella Moench in Jugoslawien. II. Der G. aspera-, G. germanica- und G. austriaca-Komplex. - Biol. Vestnik 16, 23 - 28.
- MAYER, E. (1969): Zur Kenntnis der Gattung Gentianella Moench in Jugoslawien. I. Der G. anisodonta-Komplex. - Österr. Bot. Zeitschr. 116, 393 - 399.
- MAYR, E. (1942): Systematics and the origin of species. - New York.
- MAYR, E. (1963): Animal species and evolution. - Cambridge, Mass.
- NECKER, N. J. (1790): Elementa botanica. 2. - Neuwind.

- NILSSON, S. (1964): On the pollen morphology in Lomatogonium A. Br. - Grana Palynol. 5, 298 - 329.
- NILSSON, S. (1967a): Pollen morphological studies in the Gentianaceae-Gentianinae. - Grana Palynol. 7, 46 - 145.
- NILSSON, S. (1967b): Notes on pollen morphological variation in Gentianaceae-Gentianinae. - Pollen et Spores 9, 49 - 58.
- NILSSON, S. (1968): Pollen morphology in the genus Macrocarpaea (Gentianaceae). - and its taxonomical significance. - Svensk Bot. Tidskr. 62, 338 - 364.
- NILSSON, S. (1970a): Pollen morphological contributions to the taxonomy of Lisianthus L. s.lat. (Gentianaceae). - Svensk Bot. Tidskr. 64, 1 - 43.
- NILSSON, S. (1970b): Pollen morphological studies in the Gentianaceae. - Acta Univ. Upsaliensis, Abstr. of Uppsala Diss. in Sci. 165, 1 - 18.
- PAWLOWSKI, B. (1970): Remarques sur l'endémisme dans la flore des Alpes et des Carpates. - Vegetatio 21, 181 - 243.
- PERRY, J. D. (1971): Biosystematic studies in the North American genus Sebatia (Gentianaceae). - Rhodora 73, 309 - 369.
- POST, D. M. (1958): Studies in Gentianaceae. 1. Nodal anatomy of Frasera and Sverttia perennis. - Bot. Gazette 120, 11 - 14.
- RAY, J. (1674): The specific differences of plants. - Proc. Roy. Soc. London 1674.
- RAY, J. (1682): Methodus plantarum nova. - London.
- RORK, C. L. (1949): Cytological studies in the Gentianaceae. - Amer. Journ. Bot. 36, 687 - 701.
- ROTH, A. W. (1827): Enumeratio plantarum phanerogamarum in Germania sponte nascentium. - Leipzig.
- SCHUSTLER, F. (1923): Some remarks to the system of Gentianaceae. - Vestn. 1. Sjezdu Českoslov. Bot. v Praze. I, 32 - 34.
- SMITH, H. (1926): Anzeiger Akad. Wiss. Wien, Math.-naturw. Kl. 63, 105.
- SMITH, H. (1936): Gentianaceae. - Symb. Sinica 7, 950 - 988.
- SMITH, H. (1961): Problems relating to the Gentiana cachemirica of the Flora of British India. - Kew Bull. 15, 43 - 55.
- SMITH, H. (1965): Notes on Gentianaceae. 1. The status of Crawfordia and Tripterosperrum. - Notes Roy. Bot. Gard. Edinb. 26, 237 - 258.
- STAPLEU, F. A. & alii (eds.) (1972): International code of botanical nomenclature. - Regnum Vegetabile 82, 1 - 426.

- STEBBINS, G. L. (1950): Variation and evolution in plants. - New York.
- STEBBINS, G. L. (1971): Chromosomal evolution in higher plants. - London.
- ST. JOHN, H. (1941): Revision of the genus Swertia of the Americas and the reduction of Frasera. - Amer. Midl. Natural. 26, 1 - 29.
- TISCHLER, G. (1951): Allgemeine Pflanzenkaryologie. 2. Hälfte: Kernteilung und Kernverschmelzung. - Handb. d. Pflanzenanat. II, 1 - 1040.
- TISCHLER, G. & WULFF, H. D. (1953 - 1963): Allgemeine Pflanzenkaryologie: Angewandte Pflanzenkaryologie. - Handb. d. Pflanzenanat. II, Ergbd. 1 - 1227.
- TOURNEFORT, J. P. DE, (1700): Institutiones rei herbariae, editio altera. - Paris.
- TOYOKUNI, H. (1961): Séparation de Comastoma, genre nouveau, d'avec Gentianella. - Bot. Mag. Tokyo 74, 198.
- TOYOKUNI, H. (1962): Further remarks to the genus Comastoma. - Acta Phytotaxon. et Geobot. 20, 136 - 138.
- TOYOKUNI, H. (1963): Conspectus Gentianacearum japonicarum. - Journ. Fac. Sci. Hokkaido Univ. Ser. 5 (Bot.) 7, 137 - 159.
- TOYOKUNI, H. (1965a): Notes on Megacodon (Gentianaceae). - Symb. Asahikaw. 1, 143 - 146.
- TOYOKUNI, H. (1965b): Systema Gentianinarum novissimum. Facts and speculation relating to the phylogeny of Gentiana, sensu lato, and related genera. - Symb. Asahikaw. 1, 147 - 158.
- TOYOKUNI, H. (1967): Notes on Gentianopsis with special reference to Japanese species. Part 1. - Symb. Asahikaw. 2, 57 - 72.
- TOYOKUNI, H. (1968): Notes on Gentianopsis with special reference to Japanese species. Part 2. - Symb. Asahikaw. 2, 137 - 146.
- WADA, Z. (1966): Cytological studies in Gentianeae. - A Bounty of Nagao Pref. 1965, 1 - 2.
- WAGENITZ, G. (1964): Gentianales. - In A. Engler: Syllabus der Pflanzenfamilien, 12. Aufl., herausgegeben v. H. Melchior, II, 405 - 424.
- WETTSTEIN, R. v. (1896): Die Gattungszugehörigkeit und systematische Stellung der Gentiana tenella Rottb. und G. nana Wulf. - Österr. Bot. Zeitschr. 46, 172 - 176.
- WILLIS, J. C. (1966): A dictionary of the flowering plants and ferns. 7th ed. revised by H. K. Airy Shaw. - Cambridge.

(To the editor: Please, print the Table I in four columns, one below the name of each author referred to, preferably with petit or ultrapetit letters).

TABLE I.

Systematic position of genera of Gentianinae

Grisebach (1845)

Gentiana Tournef.

- Sect. Asterias Ren.
- Sect. Andicola Griseb.
- Sect. Imicola Griseb.
- Sect. Amarella Griseb.
- Sect. Antarctophila Griseb.
- Sect. Arctophila Griseb.
- Sect. Crossopetalum Froel.
- Sect. Cyclostigma Griseb.
- Sect. Chondrophylla Bunge
- Sect. Eurythalia Griseb.
- Sect. Pneumonanthe Neck.
- Sect. Thylacites Ren.
- Sect. Coelente Ren.
- Sect. Daarstephan Griseb.
- Sect. Tretorriza Ren.

Eudoxia G. Don

Crawfordia Wall.

Tripterospermum Blume

Centaurella Michx.

Pleurogyne Eschsch.

Anagallidium Griseb.

Stellera Turcz.

Ophelia Don

- Sect. Euophelia Griseb.
- Sect. Neurophelia Griseb.
- Sect. Agthodes Griseb.

Exadenus Griseb.

Halenia Borckh.

Frasera Walt.

Swertia L.



Table I, second column:

Gilg (1895) and Kusnetzov (1895)

Crawfordia Wall.

- Subg. Pterygocalyx (Maxim.) Gilg
- Subg. Dipterospermum C. B. Clarke
- Subg. Tripterosperrum (Blume) C.B. Clarke

Jaeschkea Kurz

Gentiana Tournef.

- Subg. Eugentiana Kusn.
  - Sect. Coelanthe Ren., emend. Kusn.
  - Sect. Pneumonanthe Neck.
  - Sect. Otophora Kusn.
  - Sect. Stenogyne Franch.
  - Sect. Frigida Kusn.
    - Subsect. Frigidae Kusn.
    - Subsect. Froelichii Kusn.
    - Subsect. Phyllocalyx Kusn.
  - Sect. Aptera Kusn.
  - Sect. Isomeria Kusn.
  - Sect. Chondrophylla Bge
  - Sect. Thylacites Ren.
  - Sect. Cyclostigma Griseb.
- Subg. Gentianella Kusn.
  - Sect. Dasystephana Griseb.
  - Sect. Andicola Griseb.
  - Sect. Imicola Griseb.
  - Sect. Stylophora C. B. Clarke
  - Sect. Megacodon Hemsley
  - Sect. Amarella Griseb.
  - Sect. Antarctophila Griseb.
  - Sect. Arctophila Griseb.
  - Sect. Crossopetalum Froel.

Ixanthus Griseb.

Pleurogyne Eschsch.

Swertia L.

- Sect. Ophelia (Don) Benth. & Hook.
- Sect. Euswertia C. B. Clarke
- Sect. Poephila C. B. Clarke
- Sect. Veratrilla Baill.

Halenia Borkh.

Table I, third column:

H. Smith (in Nilsson 1967a)

Ixanthus Griseb.

Jaeschkea Kurz

Crawfurdia Wall.

Sect. Protocrawfurdia H. Sm.

Sect. Crawfurdia H. Sm.

Tripterospermum Blume

Gentiana L.

Sect. Coelenthe Ren.; emend. Kusn.

Sect. Pneumonante Neck.

Sect. Otophore Kusn.

Sect. Stenogyne Franch.; emend. Kusn.

Sect. Frigida Kusn.

Subsect. Monopodiae H. Sm.

Subsect. Sympodiace H. Sm.

Sect. Aptere Kusn.

Sect. Chondrophylla Bge.

Sect. Thylacites Ren.

Sect. Cyclostigma Griseb.

Gentianella Moench

Sect. Crossopetalum Froel.

Sect. Arctophila Griseb.

Sect. Amarella Griseb.

Sect. Comastoma Wettstein

Sect. Andicola Griseb.

Lomatogonium A. Br.

Swertia L.

Sect. Ophelia (Don) Benth. & Hook.

Sect. Euswertia C. B. Clarke

Latouchea Franch.

Veratrilla Baill.

Megacodon (Hemsley) H. Sm.

Halenia Borckh.

Table I, fourth column:

Löve & Löve

Gentiana L.

- Subg. Gentiana (x = 5)
- Subg. Coilantha (Borckh.) Holub (x = 5)

Gentianodes Löve & Löve

- Subg. Gentianodes (x = 6)
- Subg. Otophora (Kunsm.) Löve & Löve (x = ?)

Favargera Löve & Löve (x = 7)

Calathiana Delarbre (x = 7)

Ciminales Adans. (x = 9)

Dasystephana Adans. (x = 11)

Ericela Ren.; S. F. Gray (x = 13) *Heterozygote + Homozygote (x = 10)*

Mehraea Löve & Löve (x = 13)

Tretorhiza Adans.

- Subg. Tretorhiza (x = 13)
- Subg. Pneumonanthe (Link) Löve & Löve (x = 13)

Ixenthus Griseb. (x = ?)

Tripterospermum Blume

- Subg. Tripterospermum (x = 23?)
- Subg. Stenogyne (Franch.) Löve & Löve (x = ?)

Lomatogonium A. Br. (x = 5)

Comastoma Toyokuni (x = 5)

Jaeschkea Kurt (x = 5)

Meracodon (H. Sm.) (x = ?)

Gentianella Moench

- Subg. Gentianella
- Sect. Gentianella (x = 9)
- Sect. Arctophila Griseb. (x = 9)
- Subg. Soogentianella Löve & Löve
- Sect. Soogentianella (x = 9)
- Sect. Andicola Griseb. (x = 9)

Gentianopsis Ma

- Subg. Gentianopsis (x = 11)
- Subg. Pterygocalyx (Maxim.) Löve & Löve (x = ?)

Crawfordia Wall. (x = ?)

Anagallidium Griseb. (x = ?)

Ophelia D. Don (x = 6)

Swertia L. (x = 7)

Halenia Borckh. (x = 11)

Frasera Walt. (x = 13)

Veratrilla Franch. (x = ?)

Letouchea Franch. (x = ?)

Macranthus

*Jaeschkeia gentianoides* Kurz: *Linn* = 28: Koul. & Gehil (1973)

Koul, A.K. & Gehil, R.N. 1973: Cytotaxonomical comparison of the floras  
of Kashmir. (I) Chromosome numbers of some common plants. —  
*Phyton* 15: 57-66.

---



Table I, second column:

Gilg (1895) and Kusnetzov (1895)

Crawfordia Will.

- Subg. Pterygocalyx (Maxim.) Gilg
- Subg. Dipterospermum C. B. Clarke
- Subg. Tripterospermum (Blume) C.B. Clarke

Jaeschkea Kurz

Gentiana Tournef.

- Subg. Argentensis Kusn.
- Sect. Coelanthe Ren., emend. Kusn.
- Sect. Pneumonanthe Neck.
- Sect. Otophora Kusn.
- Sect. Stenogyne Franch.
- Sect. Frigida Kusn.
- Subsect. Frigidae Kusn.
- Subsect. Froelichii Kusn.
- Subsect. Phyllocalyx Kusn.
- Sect. Aptera Kusn.
- Sect. Isomeria Kusn.
- Sect. Chondrophylla Ege
- Sect. Thylacites Ren.
- Sect. Cyclostigma Griseb.
- Subg. Gentianella Kusn.
- Sect. Desystephana Griseb.
- Sect. Andicola Griseb.
- Sect. Utaicola Griseb.
- Sect. Stylophora C. B. Clarke
- Sect. Megacodon Hemsley
- Sect. Amarella Griseb.
- Sect. Antarctophila Griseb.
- Sect. Arctophila Griseb.
- Sect. Crossopetalum Froel.

Ixanthus Griseb.

Pleurogyne Eschsch.

Swertia L.

- Sect. Ophelia (Don) Benth. & Hook.
- Sect. Euswertia C. B. Clarke
- Sect. Poephila C. B. Clarke
- Sect. Veratrilla Reill.

Halenia Borckh.

Table I, third column:

H. Smith (in Nilsson 1967a)

Ixanthus Griseb.

Joeschkea Kurz

Crawfurdia Wall.

Sect. Protocrawfurdia H. Sm.

Sect. Crawfurdia H. Sm.

Tripterospermum Blume

Gentiana L.

Sect. Coelanthæ Ren.; emend Kusn.

Sect. Pneumonanthe Neck.

Sect. Otophore Kusn.

Sect. Stenogyne Franch.; emend. Kusn.

Sect. Frigide Kusn.

Subsect. Monopodiæ H. Sm.

Subsect. Symphodiæ H. Sm.

Sect. Aptere Kusn.

Sect. Chondrophylla Bge.

Sect. Thylacites Ren.

Sect. Cyclostigma Griseb.

Gentianella Moench

Sect. Crossopetalum Froel.

Sect. Arctophila Griseb.

Sect. Amarella Griseb.

Sect. Comestoma Wettstein

Sect. Andicola Griseb.

Lomatogonium A. Fr.

Swertia L.

Sect. Ophelia (Don) Benth. & Hook.

Sect. Euswertia C. B. Clarke

Letouchea Franch.

Veratrilla Baill.

Megacodon (Hemsley) H. Sm.

Halenia Borckh.





Xanthox Griseb. x = ...

Isaebler Kury x = 5 (2-20)

Pterygocalyx Maxim. x =

→ Centropogon (Pogonius 1953, Nilim 1970, p. 8).

Craspedium Willd. x =

Tristerospermum Blume x = 23 ?

Centium L. x = 5

Tretowigia Adams. x = 13

sect. Tretowigia

sect. Pneumonanthe <sup>Lich</sup> (~~Hedstr.~~) L. v. l.

sect. Otophora (Kunze) L. v. l.

sect. Stenogyne (Franch.) L. v. l.

Dasytrogium Adams. x = 11

Centiander Loez Loe x = 6

Taraxacum Loez Loe x = 7

Mehraea Loez Loe x = 13

Ciminolis Adams. x = 9

Ericula S. F. Gray x = 13

Celathian Delarbre x = 7

Centianopsis Ma x = 11

Centiella March x = 9

sect. Centiella

sect. Autrophila Griseb.

sect. Autrotrophila Griseb.

sect. Andiella Griseb.

Comastoma <sup>Wittf.</sup> Pogonius x = 5

Lomdogonium A. Br. x = 5

Suetia L. x = 7

Fraxea Walt. x = 13

Ophelia D. Don. x = 5 ?

Amegillidium Griseb. x =

Latanche Franch.

Veratrilla Franch.

Megacodon (Hedstr.) H. Br.

Halenia Benth. <sup>(ell.)</sup>

Prozente

Centina (5)

Centiades (6)

Favory (7)

Ciminelis (9)

Mehraen (12?)

~~Cratichne~~

Ericale (12)

Tretarkige (12)

Khathus (2)

Tripterospermum (25)

Calathina (7)

Dasytrophum (11)

Lometogin (5)

Comastum (5)

Jaeschkei (5)

Calathina (7)

Centinelle (9)

Centiopyris (11)

Pterogycolyx (2)

Craxpurdie (2)

Halenia

Aneyellidim (2)

Opheleia (8)

Suetin (2)

Fraseri (12)

Veratrill (2)

Lalander (2)

~~Stylophimathra~~  
Megacodon unom  
sag. Reg.  
sag. Stylophora?  
Megacodon  
(s. M. unom  
s. Stylophora.  
möglicherweise  
zu Stylophora  
Stylophora sag.

Chondryphth : (= Ericula Pan., p.p., Higgins Schum. p.p.).

G. stricta = gracilis L. = 26.

G. pyrenaica = floribunda L. = 26.

possible Higgins - by restriction

G. stricta 2 = 25

G. stricta

G. stricta

= Ericula S.F. Gray.

Thylosites : (= Megastictis Gand.) - Cinnabaris Ades.; rest. Hb. hb.

G. acanth. = lucida + modica : 2 = 26.

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Cyclostigma : (= Thylosites Nees).

G. atricolum

(Higgins - Schult)

G. nuda 2 = 14

G. ovata 2 = 28

Calathium Delarbre (1800)

(cf. Hb. hb. 1972)

G. bavaricum 2 = 30? Fungus 1965-

G. imbricatum

G. pumilum 2 = 20 : Fungus 1965-

G. brachyphyllum 2 = 28 : Fungus 1965-, 30 : Müller in L. 1976

G. atricolum 2 = 22

G. tomentosum 2 = 42 (40)

alt. Chondryphle = ~~Chondryphle~~ Chondryphle  $x = 9 (10?)$

*Centron agreste* Royle  $n = 10$  : Reber & Vanderm 1972 (XXVI)

$= 18? \text{ of } 20?$

*G. cognata* Hb.  $n = 10$  alt. Chondryphle = ~~Chondryphle~~ Chondryphle

*G. macrocarpa* Will.  $n = 9$  : Arnold

*G. pedunculata* Will.  $n = 9$  : Chondryphle

*Jaeschkea latirostris* (L.) Cl.  $n = 10$

*Swartzia lurida* Royle  $n = 13$  : Ophelia mit Eurythelia

*Centron carinata* Griseb.  $n = 20$  : Reber & Gil 1968 (XVI)

mit Eurythelia Griseb. videtur, d.2  
(Chondryphle sp.) incl. agreste, cognata  
et...

*Swartzia elata* Royle  $n = 12$  : Ophelia mit Agathodes

*S. agrestifolia* Dur. & Hb.  $n = 12$  : Ophelia mit Agathodes

*S. cordata* Will.  $n = 13$  : Ophelia mit Eurythelia

*S. purpurascens* Will.  $n = 12$  : Ophelia mit Eurythelia

*S. spicosa* Will.  $n = 13$  : Swartzia

A very likely  
distinction  
Griseb. (not at all)

Digitized by Humboldt Institute for Botanical Documentation

There are morphological indicators that  
some species of, e.g., the sections Cyclotipium & Chondryphle (and  
maybe Uromyces) should be included in the section Eurythelia Griseb.,  
which Uromyces should be included in the latter actually may be better  
of Cyclotipium should be placed as a genus in its own right, with a few  
species misplaced in Chondryphle being  $x = 5$

We are aware of that this splitting may not go far enough in a few cases - - -

It is possible and indeed likely that several species  
have been misplaced ~~in~~ when arranged in sections by  
entire authors, as shown in several such corrections proposed  
by Smith . . . and Toyama . . . and size chromosome counting  
may give hints as to the needs for such transfers. ~~It is also~~ It is also  
possible that some of the species, especially of ~~the~~ the section Chondryphle,  
may require the re-assignment of still other genera than here proposed, ~~where~~  
when their cytological characteristics become available in support of ~~the~~ morphological ~~distinctions~~ distinctions.

Farrago - Hayek 1964 (II):

- Gentiana aequifolia* Villars 2 = 38
- G. androsensis* Boiss. in = 18
- G. cypria* Hayek 2 = 36
- G. brachyphylla* Villars 2 = 14 in Müller.
- G. andriensis* (Wittst.) Dr. Pl. & Sem. = 18
- G. Farrati* Ritzler 2 = 28-30 32 Müller in L. 1974.
- G. Froelichii* 2 = 42
- G. hypericifolia* Thunb. 2 = 36
- G. ligustica* Vilm. & Chy. = 18
- G. pannonica* Scop. 2 = c. 40
- G. Tergolomensis* Hayek 2 = c. 42

F. c. H. 1965 (IV):

- G. (Gentiana) brunnostriata* Gilg 2 = 36 (S. Am.)
- G. unguiculata* (R. & P.) Gilg 2 = 36
- Helianthemum unguiculatum* (R. & P.) Gilg 2 = 22

*Fraxinus speciosa* Dougl. 2 = 78: Loez & Kogon 1967 (XIV).

*Helianthemum degeneri* (Dr.) Griseb. = 11: Muller 1962 (XIV).

*Gentiana elyda* Pell. 2 = 28: Moirain 1968 (XV).

L. 1974 S: Müller:

- G. boissieri* 2 = 30
- G. brachyphylla* 2 = 28
- G. farrati* 2 = 32
- G. nivalis* 2 = 14
- G. rostrata* 2 = 30
- G. subulnensis* 2 = 30
- G. unguiculata* 2 = 38
- G. Tergolomensis* 2 = 36.

Comastoma (Wettst.) Toyohari

~~Wettst.~~ see Toyohari.

Centrella trichocaul. H. S. (Det. Dms. 1967-70).

tanaka (Wettst.) Toyohari

fr. N. 111-1582:

arvettum (Franch.) Holms

scabra (W. W. Sm.) Holms

dichotoma (Pellus) Holms

fulvum (Tenzig.) Toyohari

lingrichtii (Griseb.) Toyohari

pedunculata (G. Don) Holms

stellisifolia (Franch.) Holms.

<sup>W. W. Sm.</sup>  
nanum (Wettst.) Toyohari

puberulum (Tenzig.) Toyohari

~~fulvum (→)~~

mackenzii (H. Sm.) Holms.

gymnophyllum (Franch.) Holms

dechyannae (Sommerst. & Gray) Holms

henryi (Humbly) Holms

sectum (Satake) Holms = ~~C. puberulum~~ ssp. ~~sectum~~ (Satake) Toyohari.

traillianum (Forrest) Holms.



x ~~Walt.~~ p. Galy, p. 88 - Nilin p. 89-90.

Suaeda L. (Eurasia, N.A., Africa) (100 specimens) X =

S. densa → S. vermiculata, Nilin p. 91, cont.

Anagallis Guss.

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Cyrtis - D. Don.

Frax - Walt.

F. Handl. (H. Don) y. Nilin 1962, p. 91, cont!  
F. tetragyna - (Pell.)



Lomatogonium A. Br.

Fernald 1919!

L. rotatum (L.) Fr. ?

L. carinthiacum (Wag.) A. Br.

L. Thomsonii (C. D. Clarke) Fernald

L. brachyactis (C. D. Clarke) Fernald — see Fernald 1919: Rebinder 21: 155-156.

in Fernald: L. spathulatum (A. W. W.)

L. difforme (Mexico.)

L. Sellenii (Humbly) H. S. (in Nilsson 1967a). (fr. Sellenii)

L. bonatianum (Duckhill) H. S.

L. chumbicum (Duckhill) H. S.

L. garrotygalum (Duckhill) H. S.

L. silchimense (Duckhill) H. S.

L. Stoyffii (Duckhill) H. S.

Nilsson 1967a:

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

L. cuneifolium H. S.

L. Jorventis (Dag. J.) Fernald

L. (arg.) Nixonii H. S.

L. maivathanum (Diels & Gilg) Fernald

L. oreocharis (Diels) Mez.

L. saccatum H. S.

(Grand-dia p.p.)  
Tripterospermum Blume (Himalayas, S.E. Ann) (3 species) 2 = ? 23.

sg. Tripterospermum

- T. fasciculatum* (Willd.)
- T. oppositum* (Willd.) H. Sm.
- T. japonicum* (Sieb. & Zucc.) Planch.
- T. trinervis* (Blume)

se ~~other~~ Nilgiris

- chinense (Miq.) H. Sm.
- caeruleum (And.-Miq.) H. Sm.
- microphyllum H. Sm.
- pterocalyx (Franch.) ... in Nilgiris not present.  
fr. Stenogyne!

sg. Styphnum

- T. styphnum* (Franch.)
- T. acrotyllum* (H. Sm.)
- T. decursum* (Dicks)
- T. tharugensis* (Oudj. f. a Forrest)

Lataucha Franch. (E. Chin) (1 species) 2 = ?

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Veratrill Franch. (Chin) (2 species) 2 = ?

- V. baillonii* Franch. + 1 or 2 other spec?
- V. burkilliana* (V. W. Sm.) H. Sm. (in Nilgiris not)

Megacodon (Hemsl.) H. Sm. (Himalayas) (2 species) 2 = ?  
(incl. *Stylophorum* (C. D. Clarke))

- M. venosus* (Hemsl.) H. Sm. ? (in Nilgiris not)
- M. stylophorum* (C. D. Clarke) H. Sm. ? 1935.

Xanthus Griseb. (Caray. Island) (1 species) 2 = ?

~~2~~

Jaeschkea Kuhn (Himalayas) (3 species) 2 = 30.

*J. oligosperma* (Griseb.) Handb. bot.

*J. lanceolata* (Don) Handb. bot.

*J. microsperma* C. B. Clarke

+ *gamboides* 2 = 28: Kunt & Gehl (1923).

+ *latifolia* C. B. Clarke n = 10: Baker & Sinden 1932 (XXXVI)

Crassifolia Willd. (Himalayas) (9 species) 2 = 20 ?

(= 17. *Digitaria* C. B. Clarke)

*C. sphenoloba* Willd.

*C. longicaulis* Willd. & Griff.

*C. angustata* C. B. Clarke

*C. puberula* C. B. Clarke.

Cantina L. s.str.

sg. Cantina  
C. lutea L.

sg. Cortanthe (Druce) H.K.

- C. bursari Lagay.
- C. parvula L.
- C. pinguis L.
- C. pannonica Berg.

sect. Homocnem. p.p. (N. in p. 84). ser: Frigid. (not on/old)

Tretorhiza Adams. (= Pneum. p.p. Aptur.)

sg. Tretorhiza. (= Aptur.) (12 species)

(Homocnem.)

T. cuneata (L.) L. et.

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

- T. delavayi (L.) L. et.
- T. Reyeri (Kuntze) L. et.
- T. Elyae (Rydb. & Sitchin.) L. et.
- T. Grambergewskii (Kuntze) L. et.
- T. Renschii (Rydb.)
- T. Woljenskii (Rydb.)
- T. siphonantha (Maxim.)
- T. Klugmanniana (Rydb. & Schindl.)
- T. dahurica (Fisch.)
- T. biflora (Rydb.)
- T. Kurroo (Royle)

- T. trichotoma (Max.)
- T. straminea (Maxim.)
- T. Fetisowii (Rydb. & Winkl.)
- T. macrophylla (Rell.)
- T. Olivieri (Griseb.) - p. Homocnem.
- T. cachemirica (Decker.)

sg. Pneum.

sect. Amnicnem. → (y. Kuntze, p. 82)  
sect. Pneum.

T. pneum. (L.) L. et.

T. scabra (Rydb.) L. et.

Centropodes

§). Centropodes

J. L. 2 L. 1872.

into ~~Theropodinae~~, ~~Synsphyriae~~

~~Quadruped~~  
~~Quadruped~~  
~~Quadruped~~

§). Stegomyia (Frankh.)

- G. trita (Maxim.)
- G. rhodantha (Frankh.)
- G. sara (Frankh.)
- G. phaeocalyx (Frankh.) — name: *Stegomyia*, in Nilin 1867, p. 30 subent.
- G. filicantis (Hendley)
- G. pumili (Linn) (Frankh.)
- G. bangleri (in Nilin p. 36).

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Dasytoga Ades. (= G. sub. ~~Pneumata~~ ~~para~~) sub. Anisoleptocera (Frankh.)

- D. asclepiade (L.) Duvoleh.
- D. schistocalyx (C. Koch) L. 2 L.

Favosia L. 2 L. (= G. sub. *Frijida* subent. *Froelichii*).

F. Froelichii (W.) L. 2 L.

Mehraea L. 2 L. (= G. sub. *Frijida* subent. *Phyllocalyx*).

M. phyllocalyx (C. D. Koch) L. 2 L.

s. str. older com.: type acutis, ex (L. general Chandrogylla).

Cimicifida Adams. (= annual Chandrogylla + Thylactis) Ericida in L. 2 L. p. p.

C. acutis (L.) Brodia. (= Thylactis)

C. divisi (Parr. & Long.) Hb. ex Eric. sp. Hb. J. Chandrogylla of Hum. p. 54

Rencher:

Ericida (S. F. Gray) (general Chandrogylla) <sup>high water of rain (N. 111 - 187) p. 25/.</sup>

E. pygmaea (L.) G. Don.

E. (altiss.) - alt. = E. pygmaea ... ?

E. pygmaea (Maxim.)

E. injeleia (L. D. G. Don)

E. Dargi (Don.)

E. turkistanica (Maxim.)

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Calathium Delabore <sup>(1800)</sup> (= var. Cyclotigena; Hippia - in L. 2 L.)

C. nividus (L.) Delabore 6 stems + 6 fls.: Hb.

C. atriculus (L.)

C. vasa (L.)

C. bavaricum (L.) in 30: Müller in L. 1924.

C. rubricum (Fernal.)

C. gracile (Jacq.)

(Fernal!)  
(C. thymoides)

Centinella March.

sg. Centinella (<sup>int.</sup> = Aussela Griseb.) se. Num. p. 85-88.  
sect. ?

sg. Arctophil- (Griseb.) L. et L.

sect. Arctophil-

- G. guineensis (Lam.)
- G. Waldemeri (Ergenstr.) - Friedl. Niln. 1862 p. 37.
- G. Tomis (Griseb.)
- G. propinqua (Richk.)
- G. aurea (L.)
- G. umbellata (M.D.)
- G. lentiginosa (Cham. & Schlecht.)

- G. vestigialis (Griseb.) (pl. - 1862)
- G. pygmaea (Raf. & Schradk.)
- G. arvensis (Rafin.)
- G. argyrea (Oxy) H. & A. (in Niln. 1862).
- G. anthracis (Benth.) H. & A.
- G. pygmaea (Raf. & Schradk.) H. & A.

sect. Antarctophile Griseb.

- G. montana (Frost.)
- G. pleurogyroides (Griseb.)
- G. magellanica (Gardner)
- G. patagonica (Griseb.)
- G. Johrii - se Niln. p. 88.

sect. Andicola Griseb.

- G. saxosa (in Niln. p. 88).

Halenia Donkch. (c. 25 sp.)

- H. elliptica Don
- H. Perrottetii Griseb.
- H. sibirica Donkch.
- H. Finckii Griseb.
- H. dyeriana (Don) Griseb.
- H. heterantha Griseb.
- H. Drenthiana Griseb. (Lind. Nat. 1).
- H. Rothrockii A. Gray (Arizona)
- H. plantaginifolia (HBK) Griseb.
- H. Schiedeana Griseb.
- H. multiflora Donkch.
- H. parviflora (HBK) Don
- H. aschegradii (HBK) Griseb.
- H. pinnatifida (R. & P.) Don
- H. brevicornis (HBK) Don.



Table 1.

Type species:

(Line 2 Line)

- Caesia <sup>L.</sup> (x=5) (= 6. sect. Caesia Dorckh.) + 1) Caesia (Dorckh.) Horn 6. lutea L.  
<sup>6. grandis L.</sup>
- Caesioides <sup>L. L.</sup> (x=6) (= 6. sect. Frigit. Horn, sect. Typica Horn) + 1) Staph. (Horn) L. L.  
<sup>6. piperita (L.) L. L. 6. Staph. (Frank.) L. L. (= l. ...)</sup>
- Favrya <sup>L. L.</sup> (x=7) (= 6. sect. Frigit. Horn, sect. Froelichii Horn)  
<sup>6. frondosa (L.) L. L.</sup>
- Calathina <sup>Dalman</sup> (x=7) (= 6. sect. Cyclotropa Griseb.) C. minor (L.) Dalman
- Cimicif <sup>Adon.</sup> (x=9) (= 6. sect. Chondryph. Dye., sect. sparsa; sect. Phyllites Horn) + 1) sect. Phyllites Dye.  
<sup>C. nemor. (L.) Dorckh.? C. densa (Parr. & Dye) Horn?</sup>
- Dasycten <sup>Adon.</sup> (x=11) (= 6. sect. Pneum. lutea subsect. varia, Asplenium Griseb. p. p.)  
<sup>D. asplenium (L.) Dorckh.</sup>
- Erica <sup>Rav. f. F. Gey</sup> (x=13) (= 6. sect. Chondryph. Dye., sect. sparsa) E. prostrata (L.) G. Don.
- Mahraea <sup>L. L.</sup> (x=13) (= 6. sect. Frigit. Horn, sect. Phyllites Horn) M. phyllites (L. D. Dorckh.) L. L.
- Tretakia <sup>Adon.</sup> (x=13) (= 6. sect. Agrost. Horn, sect. Pneum. lutea p. p.) + 1) Pneum. lutea (L.) L. L.  
<sup>J. compta (L.) L. L. T. pneum. (L.) L. L.</sup>
- Xanthus <sup>Griseb.</sup> (x=?) 1. viscosus Griseb.
- Tripterygium <sup>Blume</sup> (x=22?) — + 1) Staph. (Frank.) L. L.  
<sup>T. ....</sup>
- Lomatogon <sup>A. D.</sup> (x=5) L. compta (Wieg.) Reh. f. ?
- Hydrocotyle <sup>Griseb.</sup> (x=7) H. compta (Wieg.) Reh. f. ?
- Traschka <sup>Griseb.</sup> (x=5) T. compta (Wieg.) Reh. f. ?
- Megacodon <sup>A. D.</sup> (x=7) M. compta (Wieg.) Reh. f. ?
- Calathina <sup>A. D.</sup> (x=7) C. compta (L.) Dorckh.
- Caesia <sup>Frank.</sup> (x=9) (= 6. sect. Caesia Dorckh., sect. p. p.) ind. 1) Caesia (Dorckh.) Horn 6. lutea (L.) Horn!  
<sup>6. grandis L. 6. piperita (L.) L. L. 6. Staph. (Frank.) L. L. (= l. ...)</sup>
- Caesioides <sup>Frank.</sup> (x=11) (= 6. sect. Caesia Dorckh., sect. p. p.) ind. 1) Caesia (Dorckh.) Horn 6. lutea (L.) Horn!  
<sup>6. grandis L. 6. piperita (L.) L. L. 6. Staph. (Frank.) L. L. (= l. ...)</sup>
- Phyllites <sup>Frank.</sup> (x=7) ind. 1) Phyllites (Horn) L. L.  
<sup>6. grandis L. 6. piperita (L.) L. L. 6. Staph. (Frank.) L. L. (= l. ...)</sup>
- Crampellia <sup>Willd.</sup> (x=?) ind. 1) Crampellia (Willd.) L. L.  
<sup>6. grandis L. 6. piperita (L.) L. L. 6. Staph. (Frank.) L. L. (= l. ...)</sup>
- Angellidium <sup>Griseb.</sup> (x=?) : A. ....
- Ophelia <sup>D. Don</sup> (x=6) (= sect. sect. Ophelia Dorckh., sect. p. p.)
- Suaeda <sup>L.</sup> (x=7) Suaeda L.
- Halenia <sup>Dorckh.</sup> (x=11) Halenia L.
- Fraseria <sup>Willd.</sup> (x=13) (= sect. sect. Fraseria Dorckh.) Fraseria L.
- Veratrum <sup>Frank.</sup> (x=?) Veratrum L.
- Lactuca <sup>Frank.</sup> (x=?) Lactuca L.

Digitized by Plant Institute for Botanical Documentation

IXanthus <sup>Gris.</sup> 2 = ... are: Canaries.

Jaeschke 2 = 20 three: Himalayas

Craufordia 2 sub. japonica 2 = 46: Vind. 1856 = Canari.

Triglochin japonica 2 = 46 Vind. 1866 (is her de neg?) = Craufordia

Canthium 400 mm sp. C. helen, pumila, punctata, japonica. Canthium x pollen (p. 63!).

Coelanthus x = 5 (2 = 40 sp., ...) Coelanthus 2 = 44.

69: also - 1) Prunella x = 13, 2 = 26 → Antennaria, Linaria, Prunella, Rubus, Saponaria, Prunella (circled), Siphocampylus, (leaves? her? 2 = 26/)

Otophora

Stenogyne

Frigitula x = 6 (2 = 24)

Agave x = 13 (2 = 52) <sup>plagiata, striata, 26: striata, 26: striata, (32-36, 36: striata) 2 = 42: macrophylla (Roth).</sup>

~~Chondrophylla~~ (x = 13) (2 = 26), ~~Epilobium~~ (x = 9) (2 = 36), ~~Cyrtanthus~~ (x = 6) (2 = 36) } slightly diff. pollen (p. 67). Epilobium 2 = 18: Rubus, Vandana.

Canthium 2 = 14: b. nivalis, 2 = 22: b. nivalis, Canthium.

Conyza x = 11 (44: alba, 2 = 78: orient. (Roth) } pollen diff. of white? p. 71.

Amelanchier x = 9 (2 = 36), Amelanchier 2 = 18.

Conium x = 5 (2 = 20: Canthium (name), 2 = 10: Canthium).

Antennaria x = 6 (2 = 36: b. nivalis).

Androsace 2 = 36: b. nivalis.

Lomatogonium x = 5

Suaeda x = 13 (7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 8, 9, 10)? 2 = 24: Rubus & Call 1858.

Ophelia (2 = 20 Africa: H. 20-445)

Enicostema 2 = 28: pumila 26: japonica.

Latanche

Veratilla

Megacodon

Halenia x = 11

→ Fraxinus Fraxinus (2 = 28)

- G. carinata* Griseb. 2 = 40: Mehr = 2 Gill 1968 (L. XVI).  
*G. angulata* Royle 2 = 20: Mehr = 2 Vasudevan 1972 (L. XXXVI).  
*G. angulata* Ham. 2 = 20.  
*G. mowcroftiana* Will. 2 = 18.  
*G. pedunculata* Will. 2 = 18.

*Isachne latirostris* Ait. 2 = 20: Mehr = 2 Vasudevan 1972.

- Suaeda alata* Royle 2 = 24: Mehr = 2 Gill 1968 (XVI).  
*S. angustifolia* Buch.-Ham. 2 = 24.  
*S. carinata* Will. 2 = 24.  
*S. purpurascens* Will. 2 = 24.  
*S. spicosa* Will. 2 = 26.  
*S. laevis* Royle 2 = 26: Mehr = 2 Vasudevan 1972.

Some of the names in larger sp. of The Eng & Germ

(5) Cantua L., Sper. plant.

Subgenus Cantua type

Cantua lutea L.  
~~Cantua~~ sp. lutea  
sign. sphygma (Munb.) Hutch

Subgenus Coccoloba (Droehk.) Hutch Folia Consist. Phyt. Tex.

Cantua pauciflora L.

C. pauciflora Scop.

C. purpurea L. sign. sphygma  
~~sp. lutea~~ ~~(Munb.)~~ ~~Hutch~~

C. Bursari Lagayr.

sp. Bursari

sp. Villarri (Griseb.) Remy

(4) Cantianodes Lam & Lam <sup>Det. N. Tim</sup> (= C. sect. Frigid subsect. Frigid)

sect. Frigid Cantianodes  
= Frigid (H. Sm.)

type + sect. Isonnia (p. 11)

sect. Isonnia (H. Sm.)

frigid (H. Sm.) L. 2 L.

algida (Pallas) L. 2 L.

andrea (L. A. C. L.) fr. Isonnia

capitata (Benth.) L. 2 L.

cahenovica (Decatur) (fr. Isonnia)

capitata (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

Cumigilensis (H. Sm. in ed.)

delavayi (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

depressa (D. Don) L. 2 L.

duclouxii (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

duclouxii (C. B. Webb) L. 2 L.

duclouxii (Munb.) L. 2 L.

farrei (Baly. f.) L. 2 L.

frigidula (Baly. f.) L. 2 L.

glauca (Pallas) L. 2 L.

hexophylla (Maxim.) L. 2 L.

Lodvi (Horn.) fr. Isonnia

lanceolata (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

areolata (H. Sm. in ed.)

picata (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

nanobensis

praedorsa (Munb.) L. 2 L.

pygmaea (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

sibiriana (C. B. Webb) L. 2 L.

sinu-ornata (Baly. f.) L. 2 L.

stipitata (Edgeworth) L. 2 L.

stragula (Baly. f. & Forrest) L. 2 L.

suboculta (Munb.) L. 2 L.

szekelyi (Klarity) L. 2 L.

tingensis (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

tingensis (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

trichotoma (Klarity) L. 2 L.

triphyllo (H. Sm.)

tubiflora (Webb) L. 2 L.

umbellata (H. Smith) L. 2 L.

varicata (Léveillé) L. 2 L.

ventricosum (Hornley) L. 2 L.

varicata (Webb) L. 2 L.

ychimianensis (Molina, Bot. Mag. Tokyo, 22(1894), p. 252)

yunnanensis (Frankh.) L. 2 L.

Flowers solitary;

1a. Corolla rotate, pale blue or white; tube short; lobes five, rarely four, each with two fimbriate nectaries <sup>at their surface</sup> near the base; calyx deeply divided into five, rarely four, lobes; stem ~~or base~~ of corolla, ~~stigma~~ <sup>semiter</sup>; ~~the~~ annual or biennial - - - Lanuginum

1b. Flowers solitary or few; corolla funnel form, campanulate or ~~or salverform~~, the sinuses with or without glands or appendages; calyx with an elongate tube. 2

2a. Corolla with appendages between the lobes; throat at lobes not ciliate - - - 3

2b. Corolla without appendages between the lobes; throat at lobes usually ciliate - - - 5

3a. Appendage in the sinus between the corolla-lobes more than half as long as the lobes; the corolla thus appearing ~~two-lobed~~; corolla discoidal, plicate; ~~not hairy~~ <sup>with hairs</sup> unless free; seeds ~~unwinged~~ - - - Cylindropuntia

3b. Appendage in the sinus between the corolla-lobes much shorter than the lobes - - - 4

4a. Annual, without ~~non~~ flowering shoots; corolla-tube almost cylindrical, plicate, with five patent lobes, the appendage in the sinus small; unless free; seeds not winged - - - Calceolaria

4b. Perennial, with ~~non~~ flowering shoots; lower leaves in a rosette caudex <sup>leaves</sup> free; <sup>leaves</sup> ~~leaves~~ free; seeds covered with white, membranous lamellae - Cactodes

5a. Flowers four-merous; corolla discoidal; corolla-lobes ovate to obovate, obtuse, usually more or less fringed or ciliate at margin, patent; sinuses of the corolla-lobes with a thin inner membrane extending across the base of bearing minute processes; ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~margin~~ <sup>margin</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~lobes~~ <sup>lobes</sup> ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~marked~~ <sup>marked</sup> - - - Cactinopsis

5b. Flowers 4- or 5-merous; sinuses of the corolla-lobes without an inner ~~inner~~ <sup>inner</sup> membrane; ovules borne in two rows along the margin of each lobe; seeds globose or slightly flattened, smooth. - - - 6

6a. Calyx-lobes four or five; corolla discoidal or cylindrical, fimbriate in throat; pedicels shorter than the <sup>tube</sup> ~~margin~~ <sup>margin</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~lobes~~ <sup>lobes</sup> ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~marked~~ <sup>marked</sup>, or with scattered <sup>vesicled</sup> ~~minute~~ <sup>minute</sup> papillae fimbriate, or the fimbriae united to form a single scale across the base of the corolla-lobe; ~~margin~~ <sup>margin</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~lobes~~ <sup>lobes</sup> ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~marked~~ <sup>marked</sup> - Cactodes

6b. Calyx-lobes four or five, emergent; corolla narrowly discoidal, with a few scales forming a fringe at the base of the acute or subacute lobes; pedicels longer than the <sup>margin</sup> ~~margin~~ <sup>margin</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~lobes~~ <sup>lobes</sup> ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~marked~~ <sup>marked</sup>, corolla ~~margin~~ <sup>margin</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~lobes~~ <sup>lobes</sup> ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~marked~~ <sup>marked</sup> with two fimbriate scales at the base of each lobe, the fimbriae shortly digitate, evanescent & smooth; ~~margin~~ <sup>margin</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~lobes~~ <sup>lobes</sup> ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~marked~~ <sup>marked</sup> - Conostoma



Cestrum nitida Griseb.

numeriflora Griseb.

ottomii Phil.

parvum Griseb.

parviflorum Reimer, in Engl. Jahrb. LXII, 228 (1929) Penn.

parvum Griseb. - see ? (Gily?)

~~penduliflorum Gily~~

parvum Fabris, in Nit. Mus. Le Plat., Bot., XV, 122 (1954)

rima D. Don

saxifragoides H. B. K.

selaginifolia Griseb.

~~spectabile Gily~~

spectabile gymnanthum Fabris, in Di. Soc. Argent. Bot. VII, 187 (1960)

stellarioides Griseb.

~~stipitatum Gily~~

thyriflorum Hoch.

Gily vargasii Fabris, in Di. Soc. Argent. Bot. VII, 86 (1958)

villosum D. Don

~~velutabundum Gily~~

Cestrum faberiae Fabris, in Nit. Mus. Le Plat., Bot. XV, 124 (1954)

G. caeruleum Gily & Griseb. in Abh. Ges. Wiss. Gottingen XXIV, 232 (1879) (Syn. Fl. Argent.)

G. jujuyense Fabris, in Nit. Mus. Le Plat., Bot. XV, 117 (1954)

- G. neomardoni R. C. Foster, in Rhodora LV, 103 (1954) (= G. marianii Gily) (S. A.?)

G. oranense Fabris, in Nit. Mus. Le Plat., Bot. XV, 124 (1954)

G. ~~penduliflorum~~ ~~Reimer~~ ~~R. C. Foster~~, in Rhodora LV, 102 (1954) (= G. ~~penduliflorum~~ Gily - S. A.?)

G. verecundum G. Simpson, in Trans. Proc. Roy. Soc. New Zealand LXXIX, 425 (1953) New Zealand

G. ~~altissimum~~ R. C. Foster, in Rhodora LVI, 103 (1954) (= G. ~~longifolium~~ Gily - S. A.?)

Cestrum

albo-roseum Gily

Gily ~~altissimum~~ Fabris, in Di. Soc. Argent. Bot. VI, 49 (1955) (Penn.)

bracteanum Gily

carum H. B. K.

Gily ~~carvatum~~ Fabris, l. c. 48 (Penn)

Gily ~~euphorbifolia~~ Fabris, l. c. 50 (Penn)

Gily ~~huancavelicense~~ Fabris, l. c. 46 (Penn)

Gily ~~tovarana~~ Fabris, l. c. 45 (Penn)

Cactinae

- cocuyana* Cuatrec., in *Caldasia* III, 457 (1945) (Colomb.)  
*guatemalensis* Standley & Steyer., in *Publ. Field Mus. Nat. Hist.*, (Chicago, Bot. Ser. XXIII, 75 (1944) (Guatemala)  
*lewisiae* Standley & Steyer., l.c., 76 (1944) (Guatemala)  
*major* Fernald, in *Nat. Mus. L. Plata, Bot.* XIV, 71 (1949) (Argentina)  
*pumilio* Standley & Steyer., l.c., 76 (Guatemala)  
*reflexifolia* Killip & Vargas, in *Bol. Mus. Hist. Nat. Javier Prado, Lima*, VIII, 218 (1944) (Peru).  
 ? *uncifolia* H. J. Lam., in *Bumke* I, 578 (1945) (Colomb.).

- ? *paraphylla* Merrill, in *Nat. Nat. Acad. Sci. Philad.*, No. 42, 7 (1944) (Sumatra)  
 ? *ulmeri* Merrill, l.c. 8 (Sumatra)

Cactinae

- Andrae-Matthewsii* Briquet, in *Cactus* IV, 326 (1931) (= *G. Matthewsii* Gily) (Peru)  
*Arbelaezii* Cuatrec., in *Trans. Mus. Com. Nat. Madrid, Ser. Bot.*, No. 26, 22 (1933) (Colomb.).  
*Coguinensis* Briquet, l.c. 328 (1931) (Chile).  
*Ernesti* Briquet, l.c. 326 (1931) (Peru)  
*Stuebelii* Briquet, l.c. 325 (1931) (Argentina)  
*Tatei* Rusby, in *Phytologia* 1, 72 (1934) (Bolivia)  
 ? *Townsendii* Briquet, l.c. 329 (1931) (Mexico)

Cactinae

- ambigua* Petrie, in *Trans. & Proc. N. Z. Inst.* LVI, 14 (1926) No. 7.  
*flava* Larranaga, *Estudios D. A. Larranaga*, II, 100 (1923) (Urg.)  
*gilgiana* Reim., in *Engl. Jahrb.* LXII, 326 (1929) (Peru).  
*lanceolata* Reim., l.c. 330 (1929) (Peru)  
 ? *humifusa* S. Moore, in *Jour. Bot.* 1925, LXIII, Suppl., 70 (Sumatra)  
*longipes* Rusby, in *Trans. N. Y. Bot. Gard.* VII, 321 (1923) (Bolivia)  
*luteo-marginata* Reim., in *Engl. Jahrb.* LXII, 332 (1929) Peru  
*persignata* Reimers, l.c. 332 (Peru)  
*rubra* Larranaga, l.c. II, 100 (1923) (Urg.)  
*solidagoides* Reimers, l.c. 329 (Colomb.)  
*Sydemanii* Petrie, in *Trans. & Proc. N. Z. Inst.* LVI, 14 (1926) No. 7.  
 ? *Coarctata* Moc. & Sesse, in *Sesse & Moc. Pl. N. Hosp. et. I.* 44 (1887-90) (Mexico).  
*regina* Gily, in *Notizbl. Bot. Gart. Berlin* VII, 509 (1921) (Peru).  
*albo-rosea* Gily, in *Engl. Jahrb.* LIV, Beih. 118, 55 (1916) (Peru).  
*androschickae* Gily, l.c. Beih. 118, 79 (1916) (Ecuador).  
*astensis* Petrie, in *Trans. N. Z. Inst.* 1915, XLVIII, 187 (1916) No. 7.  
*atrovirens* Gily, l.c. 53 (Colomb.)  
*beneditae* Gily, l.c. 80 (Bolivia)  
*bochii* Gily, l.c. 74, Bolivia.  
*briquetiana* Gily, l.c. 72, Bolivia.  
*cardiophylla* Gily, l.c. 75, Ecuador  
*carinicoctata* Wernham, in *Trans. Linn. Soc. Bot.* IX, 117 (1916) No. Guano



Cacti

Carneo-rubra Gilg, in Engl. Jahrb. L.V., Bech. 118, 55 (1916) Parm.

Chrysantha Gilg, l. c. 81 (Bolivi)

Chrysosphaera Gilg, l. c. 77 (Parm.)

Chrysoaemia Gilg, l. c. 73 (Parm.)

? Clematis harilli, in Philozopp. Journ. Sci., Bot. XIII, 120 (1918) (Dorcas)

Comarapana Gilg, l. c. 82 (Bolivi)

crassicaulis Gilg, l. c. 80 (Parm)

dasythamna Gilg, l. c. 63 (Bolivi)

delicispoda Gilg, l. c. 38 (Parm)

gibbii Petrie, in Trans. N. Z. Inst. 1916, XLIX, 52 (1917), N. Z.

graciliorum Gilg, l. c. 24 (Parm)

? haukthali Gilg, in ~~Haukthali, Petrie in Bolivi, Parm~~ in Engl. Jahrb. XLIX, 212 <sup>Bolivi</sup> <sup>et?</sup>

Lebanostreptoides Gilg, l. c. 59, Parm.

largoyii Gilg, l. c. 57. (Bolivi)

lanceajamii Gilg, l. c. 71 (Bolivi)

lilacino-flavescens Gilg, l. c. 78 (Bolivi)

lithophila Gilg, l. c. 79 (Bolivi)

lobii Gilg, l. c. 60 (Parm)

lobeloides Gilg, l. c. 70 (Parm)

lithoides Gilg, l. c. 21 (Bolivi)

marconkya Gilg, l. c. 40 (Bolivi)

manducii Gilg, l. c. 77 (Bolivi)

matheusii Gilg, l. c. 64 (Parm.)

marocana Gilg, l. c. 38 (Argent.)

marcioides Gilg, l. c. 65 (Bolivi)

pachystroma Gilg, l. c. 46. (Parm)

pallens Gilg, l. c. 47 (Bolivi)

pallide-lilacina Gilg, l. c. 58 (Bolivi)

pilyriana Gilg, l. c. 42 (Bolivi)

potamophila Gilg, l. c. 74. (Parm)

pratensis Gilg, l. c. 48 (Bolivi)

primuloides Gilg, l. c. 71 (Bolivi, Parm)

purpurifolia Gilg, l. c. 65 (Bolivi)

Sagittifolia Wernham, in Trans. Linn. Soc., Bot. IX, 117 (1918), N. Guin.

? scarlettostriata Gilg, l. c. 67. (Parm)

Singalayanensis, Dachs, in Bull. Jard. Bot. Belgique, Ser. III, II, 228. (1921) Java

spaldus Gilg, l. c. 74 (Ecuador)

stratiolix Gilg, l. c. 58 (Bolivi)

stricticaulis Gilg, l. c. 62 (Parm)

? sumatra Ridley, in Fed. Nat. States Mus. VIII, IV, 58 (1917) (Sumatra)

terosticoides, Petrie, in Trans. N. Z. Inst. 1916, XLIX, 51 (1917), N. Z.

1 titorumii Gilg, l. c. 84 (Bolivi)

2 vanderwateri Wernham, in Trans. Linn. Soc., Bot. IX, 117 (1916) N. Guin.

3 willistonii Wernham, l. c. 118 (N. Guin.)

Contin:

- Sellatula* Gilg, in *Eng. Jahrb.* 1, *Denk.* L. VII, 49 (1912) (Bolivi.)  
*Grandtiana* Gilg, l. c. 48 (Pam.)  
*decanis* Gilg, l. c. 48? (Argent.)  
 ? *Copelati*: *Elmer* Leaflet, *Philipp. Bot.* VII, 267 (1915) (Philippinen)  
*euryzygala* Gilg, l. c. 50 (Pam.)  
*flavida* Petrie, *Trans. N. Z. Inst.* 1910, XLIII, 255 (1911) N. Z.  
*matthewsii* Petrie, *Trans. N. Z. Inst.* 1911, XLIV, 185 (1912) N. Z.  
*poecilifera* Gilg, l. c. 48. (Pam.)  
*scarletiflora* Gilg, l. c. 49 (Pam.)  
*serotina* Cocharae, in *Trans. N. B. Inst.* 1909, XLVII, 115 (1915) N. Z.  
*tenuifolia* Petrie, in *Trans. N. Z. Inst.* 1912, XLV, 270 (1912) N. Z.  


---

*anthoxycha* Gilg, in *Foedus Regent.* II, 46 (1906) (Bolivi.)  
 ? *argensis* Hamill, in *Philipp. J. Sci.* 1, *Sugg.* 223 (1906) (Philippinen) ?  
*arcanoides* Gilg, l. c. 32 (Pam.)  
*Selinum* ~~Gilg~~ Pax, in *Foedus Regent.* VII, 243, (1909) (Bolivi.)  
*strumecincta* Gilg, l. c. 27 (Pam.)  
*calcareo* Gilg, l. c. 42 (Pam.)  
*chathamica* Cheeseman, *Man. N. Z. Fl.* 449 (1906) *Ins.* (hatham: N. Z.)  
*corallina* Gilg, l. c. 48 (Pam.)  
*dryophila* Hamill, *Philipp. J. Sci.* I, *Sugg.* 223 (1906) (Philippinen)  
*divina* Cheeseman, *Man. N. Z. Fl.* 455 (1906) (N. Z. Fl.)  
*ericothamna* Gilg, l. c. 50 (Pam.)  
*erythrochrysa* Gilg, l. c. 38 (Bolivi.)  
*fiabrigii* Gilg, l. c. 45 (Bolivi.)  
*flavido-flamma* Gilg, l. c. 33 (Pam.)  
*gracilifolia* Cheeseman, *Man. N. Z. Fl.* 1144 (1906) N. Z.  
*hydrophiloides* Gilg, l. c. 40 (Bolivi.)  
*ignea* Gilg, l. c. 42 (Pam.)  
*kraussiana* Gilg, l. c. 45 (Bolivi.)  
*lavandoides* Gilg, l. c. 49 (Pam.)  
*lilacina* Gilg, l. c. 40 (Pam.)  
*lorantzi* Koord. in *Lorentz, Nova Guinea* VIII, 175 (1909) (N. Guinea)  
*lurida violacea* Gilg, l. c. 37 (1906) (Pam.)  
*macroclada* Gilg, l. c. 47 (Bolivi.)  
*mesembrianthemoides* Gilg, l. c. 41 (Pam.)  
*musoides* Gilg, l. c. 35 (1906) (Pam.)  
*nayrathae* Gilg, l. c. 43 (1906) (Bolivi.)  
*odontosagala* Gilg, l. c. 48 (Bolivi.)  
*oreosilene* Gilg, l. c. 40 (Pam.)

(Cont.)

Centrosema (cont.)

- paludicola* Gilg, l. c. 42 (Pan)  
*patula* Cheesman, *Trans. N. Z. Acad. Sci.* 452 (1906) (N. Z.).  
*patrophila* Gilg, l. c. 42 (Pan)  
*periphyantha* Gilg, l. c. 39 (Pan)  
*pseudocramula* Gilg, l. c. 44 (Bolivi)  
*pseudolycopteron* Gilg, l. c. 38 (Pan)  
*roseo-lilacina* Gilg, l. c. 35 (Pan)  
*sanctorum* Gilg, l. c. 41 (Pan)  
*sandersonii* Gilg, l. c. 36 (Bolivi)  
*scarlatina* Gilg, l. c. 36 (Pan)  
*thiosphaera* Gilg, l. c. 46 (Bolivi)  
*townsonii* Cheesman, *Trans. N. Z. Acad. Sci.* 450 (1906) (N. Z.).  
*tristicha* Gilg, l. c. 39 (Pan)  
*venicosa* Cheesman, l. c. 1145 (N. Z.).  
*weberbaueri* Gilg, l. c. 51 (Pan)

III.

- dolichantha* Gilg, in *Tourage V*, 109 ... *in part* Gr. (Bolivi)  
 ? *purpurilla* T. S. Bradegee, in *Zoe*, I, 131 (1904) (Mexico).

II

Digitized by Humboldt Institute for Botanical Documentation

- atropurpurea* Gilg, in *Stylos*, 189, 231, *in part* Gr. (Bolivi)  
*baugii* Gilg, l. c. 324. *in part* Gr. (Bolivi).  
*barbeyana* Gilg, l. c. 310 (Pan).  
*brachysepala* Gilg, l. c. 228 (Ecuador)  
*bridgeri* Gilg, l. c. 316 (Bolivi)  
*calandroides* Gilg, l. c. 320 (Pan)  
*cantablenis* Gilg, l. c. 334 (Pan)  
*claytonioides* Gilg, l. c. 318 (Argent.)  
*cochadamseni* ~~Gilg~~ Rusby, in *Trans. Torrey Bot. Club* VI, 39 (Bolivi).  
*dacryoides* Gilg, l. c. 311 (N. Granti)  
*daryantha* Gilg, l. c. 309 (N. Granti)  
*dielriani* Gilg, l. c. 316 (Bolivi)  
*enxleri* Gilg, l. c. 314 (N. Granti)  
*exacoides* Gilg, l. c. 329 (Pan)  
*filipes* Cheesman, in *Trans. N. Z. Inst.* XXVIII, 538 (1900). (N. Z.)  
*gayeroides* Gilg, l. c. 320 (Bolivi)  
*gibboides* Gilg, l. c. 314 (Ecuador)  
*Gilliesii* Gilg, l. c. 317 (Am. austr.)  
*Giulianetti* Hamley, in *New Bull.* 1899, 108 (N. Guin.)  
*gyrophora* Gilg, l. c. 305 (Bolivi).

Juts..

(cont.)

- Leliantides* Gilg, l. c. 221 (Rep. Argent.)  
*hircynius* Gilg, l. c. 225 (Argent.)  
*hypnicoides* Gilg, l. c. 212 (Aves. austr.)  
*maequivalyx* Gilg, l. c. 224 (Chiliv.)  
*montei* Gilg, l. c. 226 (Chiliv.)  
*luzonensis* Gilg, l. c. 225 (Chiliv.)  
*lanceolatus* Gilg, l. c. 226 (Chiliv.)  
*leucoglossus* Hemsley, in New Bull. 1896, 28 (Celebes)  
*lehmannii* Gilg, l. c. 210 (Aves. austr.)  
*longibarbatum* Gilg, l. c. 221 (Ecuador)  
*macgregoriae* Hemsley, in New Bull. 1899, 107 (N. Guinea)  
*nevadensis* Gilg, l. c. 213 (N. Granti)  
*robusta* Gilg, l. c. 220 (Chiliv.)  
*peruviana* Gilg, l. c. 204 (non Gies!) (Peru). see 2 (Giesl.)  
*riojae* Gilg, l. c. 219 (Argent.)  
*sabbaticoides* Gilg, l. c. 228 (Ecuador)  
*silvaticus* Gilg, l. c. 219 (Chiliv.)  
*serotinus* Gilg, l. c. 222 (Chiliv.)  
*speciosus* Gilg, l. c. 225 (Peru)  
*stans* Gilg, l. c. 224 (Chiliv.)  
*stuebelii* Gilg, l. c. 217 (Peru)  
*sulphurea* Gilg, l. c. 208 (Ecuador)  
*tarapacana* Gilg, l. c. 205 (Chile)  
*tubulosa* Gilg, l. c. 215 (Argent.)  
*Tupa* Gilg, l. c. 223 (Peru).



Foghorn

sect. Foghorn; N. S. Aust.

sect. Anticlimax (Gard.) L. L. : S. A.

antarctica (Clark) L. L.

adaptation of a peteological condition of some secondary  
antipode (Clark)  
the condition of a mesophytic tree, depends on the

astoria (Petrie)

Schindleria (Hook.)  
is present in the arctic region where peteological is

aria (Hook.)  
peteological. an extreme restriction for peteological  
sup. aria

and aria (Clark) specimens include the species of

Chathamia (Cheeseman) which are peteological. the species

conspicua (Hook.) in the presence of such a condition is

conspicua (Clark) peteological may be present. maintenance

diversa (Clark)  
peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

peteological. in which the peteological species of

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Andriae H. D. K.

Fossil? or not?

Fossils

ragiata (Linnth.)

limbellata (Linnth.)

virginica (Gris.)

sericea (Gris.)

nitida (Gris.)

Cornu (Linnth.)

marginata (Gris.)

scitiparoides (Linnth.)

hercules (Gris.)

hookeri (Gris.)

stacilis (Linnth.)

sericea (Forst.)

incana (Hornem.)

primula (Gris.)

dilatata (Gris.)

Caroliniana (Linnth.)

capitata (Linnth.)

cupulata (Gris.)

drummondii (Gris.)

multicaulis (Gris.)

granulata (Linnth.)

multicaulis (Linnth.)

Jobbia (Linnth.)

crucifera (Gris.)

nemoralis (Gris.)

hypnoides (Linnth.)

hirsutula (Linnth.)

radicata (Gris.)

nitida (Gris.)

distans (Gris.)

inflata (Gris.)

pubescens (Hornem.)

pendula (Gris.)

metastoides (Gris.)

diffusa (Linnth.)

hirsuta (Linnth.)

bracteata (Gris.)

cosmantha (Gris.)

dactyloides (Gris.)

deltoidea (Gris.)

gigantea (Gris.)

magellanica (Gris.)

multicaulis (Gris.)

multicaulis (Gris.)

multicaulis (Gris.)

multicaulis (Gris.)

multicaulis (Gris.)

multicaulis (Gris.)

stricticalyx (Gris.)

82

Digitized by the Institute for Botanical Documentation





It has clearly emerged that although the genes - or DNA if the reader so wishes, - and their mutation or recombination and the following natural selection of the combination are all important for creation of variability of all the characteristics of any taxon, this is a process requiring infidelity at least until selection sets in, whereas selection will continue its polishing of the results until the existing line becomes extinct. But it has also been shown that the chromosomes, in which the genes are situated, are all-important as the agents of reproduction in the case of a lowest child, plant taxonomy is a ~~reproductive isolation~~ ~~that~~ ~~conserves~~ ~~the~~ ~~favorable~~ ~~combination~~ ~~of~~ ~~genes~~, and that this isolation is produced by aid of ~~mechanical~~ ~~mainly~~ ~~enforced~~ ~~sexual~~ ~~isolation~~ and ~~cross~~ ~~changes~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~chromosomes~~ that ~~field~~ ~~which~~ ~~is~~ ~~isolated~~ ~~from~~ ~~the~~ ~~parental~~ ~~stock~~. At the same time ~~fully~~ ~~oppose~~ ~~their~~ ~~pairing~~ ~~at~~ ~~meiosis~~, i. e. thus, the fusion of the gametes, ~~for~~ ~~the~~ ~~creation~~ ~~of~~ ~~new~~ ~~evolutionary~~ ~~lines~~ ~~at~~ ~~a~~ ~~higher~~ ~~level~~ ~~the~~ ~~great~~ ~~importance~~ ~~of~~ ~~displaced~~ ~~chromosome~~ ~~changes~~ ~~for~~ ~~the~~ ~~creation~~ ~~of~~ ~~new~~ ~~evolutionary~~ ~~lines~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~still~~ ~~higher~~ ~~level~~ ~~and~~ ~~also~~ ~~that~~ ~~of~~ ~~reproductive~~ ~~isolation~~ ~~has~~ ~~been~~ ~~established~~, whereas the significance of chromosome changes in the ~~evolution~~ ~~of~~ ~~organisms~~ ~~is~~ ~~obvious~~ ~~to~~ ~~say~~ ~~the~~ ~~least~~. Taxonomy has been defined in various ways, ~~to~~ ~~say~~ ~~the~~ ~~least~~.

~~It~~ according to the point of view of those concerned, ~~but~~ ~~not~~ ~~it~~ ~~included~~ It is actually a dual science, which bases its approach on the theory of evolution as reflected in the flow of organisms from lower level to a higher. It is ~~the~~ ~~opinion~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~writers~~ that it is wisely divided into what could be called true plant systematics/ ~~which~~ ~~is~~ ~~the~~ ~~restricted~~ ~~sense~~. ~~The~~ ~~aim~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~former~~ ~~is~~ ~~to~~ ~~produce~~ ~~an~~ ~~order~~ ~~in~~ ~~which~~ ~~all~~ ~~the~~ ~~categories~~ ~~of~~ ~~organisms~~ ~~are~~ ~~classified~~ ~~in~~ ~~such~~ ~~a~~ ~~way~~ ~~that~~ ~~reflects~~ ~~their~~ ~~evolutionary~~ ~~history~~ ~~as~~ ~~clearly~~ ~~as~~ ~~possible~~; Since systematics so defined inevitably ~~is~~ ~~concerned~~ ~~with~~ ~~the~~ ~~classification~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~lower~~ ~~end~~ Systematics so defined is mainly a historical science which is forced to work with

Introduction (1964) - Leber till skänkt om syst. + tax.

och ett för förståelse av de högre kategorierna måste man ha en god förståelse för ett steg - och för karakterer, charaktärer för ett första inträffande i de senare avseende - genom, morfologin för identifiering, och naturligtvis för samskapet. Konstansen - gattien, egentligen ~~är~~ att dessa morfologi + gattien kombinationer, av stötte vilket för högre kategorier, till exempel morfologi och gattien.

De borde tänka - alla karakterer är identifierbara för de högre systematiken, man man kan konstatera, att de inte alltid förtjätt sig på egenskaper, betydelse eller på karaktärer.

Såväl lärt om alla karakterer och gattien, också förståelse och gattien -

Evolutionary classification - or plant classification. (in English).

Although Warburg ( ), on the authority of Smith ( ), had regarded all the New Zealand genera as representatives of Centronella, as actually had been indicated already by Huxtable ( ) when placing the antrod genera in the section - - - of that ~~group~~ group, which he regarded as a subgenus only, Allan (19 ) voiced doubts as to the correctness of this.

~~for the~~

*[Faint, mostly illegible handwritten text follows]*

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

*[Faint, mostly illegible handwritten text continues at the bottom of the page]*

There is a reason to suggest, on basis of the morphological ~~diversity~~ ~~of the material~~ of even the limited material seen, ~~for~~ that the genus could be subdivided into sections, although the variety is considerably more limited than that of the large boreal genus ~~Centropogon~~ <sup>genus that has been so described.</sup> ~~s. str.~~ However, the preliminary sectioned division into Antarctophilus et by Griseb. ( ) is likely to have to be abandoned, since it ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> based on characters that are not even geographically limited to one of the very disjoint areas of the genus and so is artificial rather than evolutionary.

Below we transfer to the new genus only species which we are convinced are correctly classified at this level, as shown by recent observations by botanists ~~from the~~ ~~area of~~ who have studied the type ~~is~~ ~~these are~~ from good ~~collections~~ and recent collections.

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Of the several ~~genus~~ ~~split out of~~ Centropogon s. l. et., the species C. prostratus (Humb.) ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~found~~ <sup>found</sup> in South America, and several other annual-biennial species of that genus ~~are known from~~ <sup>are known from</sup> New Guinea and Australia. But other ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> the genera of the austral region belong to the new genus Torreyana.

Prostratus 26. (Chenopodiaceae) = Cimicifuga, et al., prostr. -  
races S. Am. + N. Am.





Although the central question has a greater relevance  
to the study of other Kusnetz (plant communities) it  
is only occasionally necessary to refer to the  
subsystem as a whole as the location of the  
retained in the system which are already adapted to certain  
far apart from any group of this nature.  
Inasmuch as the plots of an ecosystem are adapted to

their environment (consisting of the physical environment,  
the other organisms, and the processes of the ecosystem),  
the existence of the precise environmental conditions else-  
where invites the migration of the plots of that ecosystem.  
This assumes, of course, that the new location is within the  
dispersal distance of the plots of the ecosystem.  
The existence of conditions precisely the same is

necessary, for those conditions represent the overlap of all  
the tolerance ranges of the species in the ecosystem. Gen-

erally, the overlap between the species of widespread eco-  
systems must be large. Thus, if conditions suitable for the  
existence of one member of a widespread ecosystem were present  
elsewhere, very many other members of the plots probably  
could also exist there.

In reality, however, ecosystems develop from different  
starting points. Ecosystems in which the plots are narrowly  
adapted to automatic factors must develop in a definite order  
or pattern and must develop from another ecosystem (i.e. an  
earlier successional stage). Thus, migration of entire eco-  
systems of this type is contingent on very restrictive re-  
quirements. Other ecosystems are pioneer in nature, and the  
plots included are widely tolerant. That conditions suitable  
for these plots exist in new areas seems more likely (as the

(5) Cactis  
s. Cactis  
s. Cactis

(4) Cactis - des L. 26.

(5) Otophora (Krusenst.) = G. sect. Otophor...  
Aurymallus  
Coryphella (H. Br.)  
decurta (Diels)  
G. Otophora Franch.

harongensis (Oehl.) & Forrest

Calathium = Deltoide to  
No. G. sect. di... = Ericaria  
(10) Cimiculus Adams. G. sect. Chondryllus + s. m. + Chondryllus (p. 200)  
(Chondryllus)

scandens (L.) Nees (Nagelke - 1 - type)  
alpina (Willd.) Holms 1973  
occidentalis (Schubert) Holms 1973  
Janais; (Hornby) (p. 200) J. G. G. 192, p. 203  
prostrata (Hooker) L. & L.  
aguttata (L.) (L. Hooker, J. G. G. 192, p. 203)  
Dangliana (Hay) Holms  
? mullis (L.)

(Chondryllus - sect. :)  
✓ laeviuscula (Foyden) Mill  
pseudohumbilis (Nelson) Holms  
Thunbergii (G. Don) ~~Franch.~~  
yakuwanensis (Nelson) Holms  
squarrosa (Ledeb.)  
Zollingeri (Franch.)  
nyssaensis (Nelson)  
arguta (Willd.) Holms 1973  
clavata (Pav. & Speg.) Holms 1973  
dinarica (G. Beck) Holms 1973  
ligustica (Villm. & Chop.) Holms 1973

Flisser mutans (Dy.)  
Karlsonii (Gris.)  
Karlsonii (Nelson)  
pseudocincta (Nelson)  
rigida (Kort. & Kör.)  
Stylosis eximia (Prosl)  
Humo micans (C. B. Under)  
agata (Nelson)  
Pheonomeny (Nelson)  
humilis (Nelson) - Caracas, Nelson - ? F. 192?  
palla (Franch.)  
synthlyptis (Nelson)  
Pretii (Nelson)  
Franchetianus (Nelson)  
Franchii (Nelson)  
arista (Nelson)  
Cavendishii (Franch.)  
gouardii (Nelson)  
rubra (Franch.)  
Vandellianus (Nelson)  
reunite (C. B. Under)  
Dunlopii (Franch.)  
Pauzebi (Nelson)  
pedunculata (Willd.)  
quadrifida (Nelson)  
Sorensenii (Hornby)  
Laurerii (Gris.)  
delectata (Nelson)  
Ogilbyi (Franch.)  
Bathmannii (Franch.)  
dunlopii (Hornby)  
agnis (Dunn)  
argentea (Ryde) + Humo (p. 84) = Humo

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

(1) Tavogera Loae & Loae (= G. sect. Foydenii sect. Foydenii...)  
Foydenii (Nelson) Loae & Loae type

(10) Calathium Deltoide (= G. sect. Gylotrypa; Higgsii (X=2, 15)  
+ se Holms. type.  
bancii (L.) Holms 1973  
Sondryllus (Willd.) Holms 1973  
mullis (L.) Deltoide  
intracaulis (L.) Holms 1973  
vema (L.) Holms 1973  
delphinensis (Dunn) Holms 1974  
angulosa (P. B.) Holms 1973  
nevadensis (Sistia) Holms 1973  
orbiculata (Chilme) Holms 1973  
pennata (L.) Holms 1973  
pennata (Hay) Holms 1973  
rostrata (Rant.) Holms 1973  
schlechtlii (Vau.) Holms 1973  
tergestina (G. Beck) Holms 1973  
tergestinensis (Hay) Holms 1973  
uniflora (Gouard) Holms 1974  
Krylovii (Franch.)  
oskhanica (Nelson)  
arctica (Franch.)  
imbricata (Franch.)  
pennata (Hay)  
? mullis  
? mullis  
? mullis

(10) Franchetii (Franch.) Cimiculus

~~(1) Helictes L. (= Helictes longiflorus)~~

(2) Dasyligochus Ades. (x=1) (= 6. nat. Baumg. p.).  
excligochus (L.) Benth.  
schistoscalyx (C. Koch) L. = L. (in Pehr. Handl.)

(10) Helictes Loez & Loez (Chondroglypha ~~glandul.~~ (x=10)  
(in Loez & Benth.))  
pyrenaeus (L.) Loez & Loez  
Boryi (Bress.) Loez & Loez  
nyssensis (Maxim.) Bull. Acad. St. Pétersbourg (1888) p. 103  
Jamaici (Humboldt) L. = L. (in Loez & Benth.) p. 103  
grandiflorus (Loez & Loez)  
micranthus (Blatt)  
ajimianus (C. Koch)  
kapsianus (Grenk.)  
altianus (Pall.)  
nigellus (C. D. Clarke)  
schizifolius (Kuntz)

Fl. III R

N. S. Am.

(1) Nehreca Loez & Loez (Epigyn. ~~part.~~ Phyllocalyx).  
phyllocalyx (C. D. Clarke) Loez & Loez.

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

(20) Tretolysa Ades. (= sect. Apter-Kunze)  
craniculata (Panth.) Sylva (Byl.)  
cruciatata (L.) G. P. G.  
dalmatica (Fisch.)  
decumbens (L.)  
feticosensis (Rey & Schult.)  
gracilipes (Turrill.)  
Gravobogusensis (Kunze) ojana  
Kamjammansu (Rey & Schult.) Kunze (Rey)  
thamnia (Benth.)  
navigifolia (Pall.) Elyse (Rey & Schult.)  
Olivieri (Gris.)  
phlogifolia (Schott & Klotzky)  
pseudodecumbens (H. B. K.)  
Stamnia (Maxim.)  
Waltmanni (Benth.)  
Walsbyi (Rey & Schult.)  
wettianensis (Mazg.)  
transhiana (Rey)  
Elyse (Rey & Schult.)  
10

Pneumella;  
Pungensis (Gris.)  
platyptala (Gris.)  
vignensis (Fross.)  
Nahianensis (Kunze)  
Fragaria (Dennis)  
calycina (Dennis & Hämmerl.)

(15) Pneumella ~~transhiana~~ Caladitche

ajjensis (Gris.) Greene  
als = (Mühl.)  
Andrewsii (Gris.)  
Brissoni (Schott & Klotzky)  
cathemontana (Decker)  
calycina (Gris.) Greene  
ollietti (Chagnon)  
gelida (M. B.)  
linensis (Fross.) Greene  
Nashburyi (A. Gray) Greene  
ochroleuca (Willd.)  
ovagena (Euglen.)  
paradoxa (Albiff)  
Pavoni (Euglen.)  
uliginosa (Schult.) (= Pneumella L.) (+ ssp. dypreni (Dennis) ?)  
puberula (Mühl.) Greene  
Jaguarini (L.)  
scabra (Byl.) (+ ssp. Burgoyi (Panth. ?))  
scaptura (Gris.) Greene  
sylvatica (Pall.) (+ ssp. leguleticana (Kunze) ?)  
tibeticana (Maxim.)  
spathacea (H. B. K.)  
triflorus (Pall.)  
yaleushianensis (Nahian)

Fl. III R

Nahian (Kunze)  
avellana (L.)  
Fischeri (P. Sm.)  
dumyana (Byl.)  
cordifolia (C. Koch)  
Grossheimii (Mühl.)  
Kela-Korshy (Mühl.)  
leguleticana (Kunze)  
pseudoleuca (Willd.)  
gelida (M. B.)  
Olivieri (Kunze)

Kunze  
Saligna (Gris.)  
calyculata (L.) & Loez.  
Barnesii (Gris.)  
ovata (Kunze)  
adungensis (Bress.)  
Rauyi (Gris.)  
calycina (Kunze)  
Balthus (A. Gray) Greene  
schraderiana (Kunze)  
angustifolia (Mühl.)  
Grisii (Kunze)



in Crafft? (P. 1882)

(20) Tripterospermum Blume

Type: T. sinense Blume

- 4 affine H. Sm.
- andatum (Nag.) H. Sm.
- chinense (Nag.) H. Sm.
- coeruleum (Hind-Nag.) H. Sm.
- cordatum (Nag.) H. Sm.
- japonicum (Fr. & Euc.) Maxim.
- microphyllum H. Sm.
- pellucidum H. Sm.
- volubile (D. Don) H. Sm.
- truncata Blume = japonicum ad. Engelm 1862, p. 249-251?

Thun. fasciculatum (Willd.)

(10) Stavogyne (Franch.) Lore & Lore x=?

+ Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

- argentea (H. Sm.)
- primuliflora (Franch.)
- pteroscalyx (Franch.)
- pubesca (H. Sm.)
- rhodantha (Franch.)
- serra (Franch.)
- Sauliei (Franch.)
- striata (Maxim.)
- flicaulis Hance.

(1) Xanthus Griseb. x=?

viscosus Griseb. (Lamour.)

+ see above + Aubrey (L. L. Swartz?)! + Stavogyne + Stavogyne!

(51) Lomatogonium A. DC. x=5.

- Sellneri (Hance) H. Sm.
- sonatanum (Banks.) H. Sm.
- dissectum H. Sm.
- carolinicum (Walt.) Rehb. (+ v. opposita, Benth.?)
- chumbicum (Banks.) H. Sm. (v. Helminum Benth.?)
- coeruleum (Rydb.) H. Sm.
- concoloratum H. Sm.
- Forrestii (Daly.) Fernal.
- gambogium (Banks.) H. Sm. incl. (see Helminum?)
- granitiformum H. Sm. incl. (see Helminum?)
- linearifolium H. Sm. -
- longifolium H. Sm.
- maianthemum (Diels & Gilg.) Fernal.
- microanthum H. Sm. incl.
- oreochoris (Diels) Nag.
- rotatum (L.) Fr. + 189?
- sacratum H. Sm.
- sichuanense (Benth.) Fernal.
- Stueffii (Banks.) H. Sm.
- also? Helminum (Hance & Schlecht.)

~~Helminum (Hance & Schlecht.)~~  
~~Stavogyne (Franch.)~~  
~~Stavogyne (Franch.)~~  
~~Stavogyne (Franch.)~~  
~~Stavogyne (Franch.)~~

+ fr. Africa!

- (47) Phlegmaphysa Thoms. 1967.
  - brachyaster (C. D. Clarke) Thoms.
  - diffusa (Maxim.) Thoms.
  - spatheolata (A. N. S. Thoms.)
  - Thomsonii (C. D. Clarke) Thoms.

- (1) Phyllanthus H. Sm.
  - concinna H. Sm.

- (20) Conostoma Torgola
  - tenellum (R. Th.) Torgola <sup>se Torgola + Nilsen!</sup>
  - jaculatum (Wieg.) Torgola <sup>type = C. tenellum</sup>
  - linguicostii (Griseb.) Torgola <sup>sig. tenellum</sup>
  - naumii (Wieg.) Torgola <sup>sig. pilosius? nomen?</sup>
  - palmosarum (Wieg.) Torgola <sup>sig. pilosius (H. Sm.)</sup>

- ALBERTA:
  - cyananthifolium (Franch.) Helms
  - Bachmannii (Tamm & Lév.) Helms
  - frankii (Franch.) Helms
  - Henryi (Humbly) Helms
  - Frankhamii (Fernald) Helms

- NEW YORK:
  - arrectum (Franch.) Helms
  - Beesleyanum (W. W. Smith) Helms
  - Macleanii (H. Sm.) Helms
  - pedunculatum (G. Don) Helms
  - stellatifolium (Franch.) Helms

- NEW JERSEY:
  - pygmaeum (Rydb. & Schellh.)

- (3) Isoschlea Nutt.
  - canaliculata (Royle) Nutt.
  - oligogonum (Griseb.) Nutt.
  - gambianoides Nutt.
  - macrogonum C. D. Clarke

- (2) Mexacodon H. Sm. <sup>(= subsp. Mexacodon + Mexacodon?)</sup>
  - stipularis (C. D. Clarke) H. Sm.
  - chomoi (Humb.) H. Sm.

- + Carthagenella Planch <sup>se Helms 1967 (Vol. 16) 18</sup>

- (18) Carthagenella <sup>(= Eudorica-Frank?)</sup>
  - ovoides (L.) Don <sup>sig. ovata (Muhl.) J. N. Gillett</sup>
  - salicina (Muhl.) Don <sup>sig. gracilis (H. Sm.)</sup>
  - longistylis (L.) Don <sup>sig. longistylis (H. Sm.)</sup>
  - virginiana (Willd.) Don <sup>sig. virgata (H. Sm.)</sup>
  - stricta (Klotzsch) Thoms. <sup>sig. stricta (H. Sm.)</sup>
  - pygmaea (Rydb. & Schellh.) Thoms. <sup>sig. pygmaea (H. Sm.)</sup>
  - hypocistifolia (Muhl.) Britton <sup>sig. hypochrysa (H. Sm.)</sup>

- consp. auriculata (Pell.) J. N. Gillett <sup>sig. auriculata (H. Sm.)</sup>
- imperialis (Takeda) Nutt. <sup>sig. imperialis (H. Sm.)</sup>
- se Helms 1967 (Monoc. Anal. 10, 1973)

- FLORIDA:
  - dissecta (Rydb.) <sup>(incl. v. thurstonii) (Rydb.)</sup>
  - canadica (R. B.)
  - Lipskyi (Humb.)
  - plebeja (Humb. & Schellh.)
  - puberula (H. Sm.)

NEW JERSEY: virginiana (H. Sm.) <sup>se Helms p. 95</sup>

1891! Centiella (Jarts.)  
F. Jarts.

(26) Sj. Arctophila (Guss.) L. & L.  
Hort. Kew. 1827: 6. Anon. L.

- argyryflora H. Sm.
- aurca (L.) H. Sm.
- argyrea (Dy.) H. Sm.
- Duthies (Dy.) H. Sm.
- gentianoides (Franch.) H. Sm.
- Andlowii H. Sm.

Isocroptilum (Willd.) King-Shaw  
obscure H. Sm.

Pyramis (Rosl. & Schmidt) H. Sm.

quinquefolia (L.) Small

propinqua (Ridw.) J. D. Gillett  
 sp. quinquefolia — J. D. Gillett  
 "sp. albertii (Ridw.)

Pl. Sib.

Wislizenii (Engelm.) J. D. Gillett

turkestanicum (Guss.)

sp. quinquefolia  
"sp. subulata (Ridw.) J. D. Gillett

strata (Dy.)

umbellata (N. B.)

in Siria (Hornem.)

pauciflora (Guss.)

Minor: quinquefolia (Hornem.)

in China — Hornem.?

tanais (Guss.)

umbellata (Hornem.)

arctophila (Guss.) N. A. M. ? sp.

pyramis (Rosl. & Schmidt)

caucasicum (Hornem.)

Oreophytax (Erdl.) H. Sm. # se Nilim + F. Jarts!

(200) Sj. Oreophytax (= 6. det. Ard. in F. Jarts.)  
J. H. Sm. p. 25. 6.

Crocophylax (C. Fr.)  
(So?) Sy. Anterostaphylis  
see Hb. 1563, 1568 (= Anterostaphylis)

see N. Z. fl. + Nilsson-Elman  
Australia  
type: Sumatran Forest

- montana (Fr.)
- plausisporides (Griseb.)
- magellanica (Candolle)
- patagonica (Griseb.)

see Nilsson ± Hb. 1563  
21-6-1863  
(?) Cantionigris DC  
detense (Roth) DC: sig. detense  
sig. yunnanensis (C. Fr.) Gillett  
sig. mangshila (C. Fr.) Gillett  
sig. Rangii (A. E. Pringle) J. N. Gillett  
sig. Kolyden (A. Gray) (C. Fr.) Gillett  
sig. crinita  
sig. prosera (Th. H. G.) J. N. Gillett  
sig. Vietnamis (C. Fr.) J. N. Gillett  
sig. Macraensis (Th. H. G.) J. N. Gillett  
yunnanensis  
barbata (Fr.) DC: sig. barbata  
sig. sinensis (DC)

(grandis (Hornem) DC = multicaulis (Rydb.)  
submarginata (C. Fr.) DC  
galadensis (Hornem) DC  
nana (C. Fr.) DC  
longistyla DC  
lutea (D. Don) DC  
contorta (Rydb.) DC = var. hirsuta DC  
Yabei (Hornem & Hieron) DC  
ciliata (L.) DC: sig. ciliata  
sig. Delabreana (C. Fr.) Rydb.  
sig. Kolyden (C. Fr.) Rydb.  
Rangii (A. E. Pringle) DC: sig. Rangii (A. E. Pringle) Rydb.  
thamnos (C. Fr.) DC: sig. vanderhoopii (C. Fr.) Rydb.  
macrantha (D. Don) DC: ant. Rydb. 1883, p. 14 note  
lanceolata (Candolle) DC: signature of Rydb. 1867  
Kolyden (A. Gray) DC: sig. macraensis (Hornem) DC  
prosera (Th. H. G.) DC: sig. 2 (L.) (1863), p. 156

Saxifraga (Rydb.) DC  
methis Rydb.  
Kumawensis (Griseb.) Rydb.  
virgata (Rydb.) Hb. 1567

Hb. 1570:  
Stracheyi (C. D. Clarke) Hb. 1570  
stricta (Klotzsch) Hb. 1570

contorta (Rydb.) (fr. var. lanceolata)  
Vanderhoopii (Griseb.)  
macrocalyx (Clarke & Lee) (Fr.)  
virescens (Griseb.)  
? serrata (C. Fr.) N. Am. = ?  
~~lanceolata (Rydb.)~~



(50) Halenia Benth.

brassicaria (H. D. K.) G. Don type: H. xibbiana Benth.  
= H. corniculata (L.) Don.

Congatzi Griseb.

corniculata (L.) ~~Benth.~~ <sup>Cornaz (in Gray)</sup> <sup>Fl. SSR.</sup>

deflexa (Don) Griseb. <sup>sp. deflexa</sup>  
<sup>sp. Brantianae (Griseb.) N. Rollé</sup>

ellegitica D. Don

Johis Gilg

gracilis (H. D. K.) G. Don

Patronii A. Gray

penduliflora Gilg

plantaginea (H. D. K.) Griseb.

robusta Gilg

Schiedeani (Schacht. & Cham.) Griseb.

Silvanoides Gilg

Tulimae Gilg

Weberbaueri Allen

Weddelliana Gilg.

(30) Fraseria Walt.

cardinaria Walt. type sp. F. cardinaria;

Boylei - Sphala int. Dimeridia Boylei?

Simaculata (Pek. & Zucc.) Boylei 1965

Cal/R: speciosa - Donal.

Parryi Torr.

albomarginata Walt.

tuberosa Cav.

neglecta Hall.

pubescent A. David's.

albicaulis (Griseb.) Kuntze - sp. albicaulis.

unguicularis Peck & Appleg. <sup>sp. nitida (Don) Peck</sup>

FNA albomarginata S. Walt.

justigata (Pursh) Hall.

montana Pursh

paniculata Torr.

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

5: sakana!

(2) Vesicivilla Franch.

Bailonii Franch

Durwilliana (W. W. Sm.) H. Sm.

(1) Latouchea Franch.

foliolosissima Franch.

Usum. p. 85

sect. XI: Dasythyra Griseb.

G. thyraxoides Holtt. Don - var. her. don?  
sp. her. th. holtt.!